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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Zhejiang RuiYuan
Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited (formerly known as
Ningbo WanHao Holdings Company Limited) (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Keng (Chairman)
(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Ms. Wu Shanhong (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Chen Weigiang (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Ding Cheng (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Guo An (resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (resigned on 15 September 2016)
Mr. Yu Nian Hua (resigned on 7 June 2016)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping (resigned on 13 December 2016)
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Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Tieyi (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (resigned on 7 June 2016)
Mr. Lu Song Qian
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (resigned on 13 December 2016)

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Shi Huanmiao (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Shenggen (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Chen Yuankang (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mrs. Mao Lihong (resigned on 7 June 2016)
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(appointed on 7 June 2016 and resigned on 13 December 2016)
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AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. He Keng (appointed on 13 December 2016)

Mr. Tsang Chi Wai Rock (appointed on 5 October 2016)

Mr. Zhu Guo An (resigned on 13 December 2016)

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (appointment terminated on 5 October 2016)

AUDITORS

KTC Partners CPA Limited
REGISTERED OFFICE

Factory, No. 3, Laiyan Road West Economic

Development Zone (South Side) Yuyao
Zhejiang China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 5608, 56/F.,

Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai,

Hong Kong.

COMPANY HOMEPAGE/WEBSITE

www.ruiyuanhk.com

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank of China

GEM STOCK CODE

8249
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company
Limited (formerly known as Ningbo WanHao Holdings Company Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”), |
am pleased to present the 2016 annual results of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The overall economic environment in the PRC in 2016 was very
challenging for private enterprises due to the following factors:

(i) the overall economic growth rate continued to slow down
(i) competition and production costs continued to increase

We strived to survive in such a harsh environment by simplifying our
operation structure and controlling costs.

In 2016, our major business included sales of controller systems for
consumer electrical and electronic appliances and sales of small electrical
appliances.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB14,337,000 (2015: RMB56,427,000), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB42,090,000 over the previous year. The
decrease in the Group’s revenue was mainly due to poor market
condition and increasing competition and shifting of Group’s policy on
focusing on high-margin products during the year.

For details of performance analysis and financial review, please refer to
page 7 to page 8 under the section Management Discussion and
Analysis.

PROSPECT

While the market for 2017 remains uncertain. Some trends seem to be
certain:

(i) the economic growth will further slow down; and

(i) automatization and replacement of labor by robotics will continue
to speed up

The above trends present threats and opportunities to the Group. | have
more than 10 years experience on industrial automatization and have
great confidence in the future market of intelligent control system for
industrial uses.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

While 2017 remains challenging for us, we will explore business
opportunities for intelligent control system for industrial uses.

DEDICATION

On behalf of all members of the board of Directors, | would like to take
this opportunity to express our sincerest gratitude to our shareholders
and colleagues for their unwavering dedications in 2016 and to our
clients and business partners for their loyalties and support rendered to
the Group.

He Keng
Chairman
Ningbo, The PRC 29 March 2017

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2016
TR

AT —EFERAFTRSEKRE - BRAKEKE
ERTEMANEREGHARNETKE -

£ &

AAERRREFS2BAC  HURSEIME
BRREETIR-ZE—RENHBER - FELH
BEFPREBBHAAEE 2 BHIFRTARH

= o
=N

=S

E34
e
FEER  —F-—LF=A-HNA



Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s activities comprise sales of controller systems for consumer
electrical and electronic appliances and sales of small electrical
appliances. The Group’s activities are primarily operated in the PRC and
the Group’s revenue is mainly attributable to customers in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB14,337,000 (2015: RMB56,427,000), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB42,090,000 over the previous year. While
there was a non-recurring item of waiver of other payables, accruals and
receipt in advances amounted to RMB5,938,000 in 2015, there is no
such item in 2016 and the Group incurred additional legal and
professional fees in relation to, amongst others, the mandatory
unconditional cash offer by Mr. He Keng and parties acting in concert
with him (the “Offeror Group”) for all the outstanding H shares in the
Company other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by
the Offeror Group in 2016 (“Mandatory Cash Offer”). As such, the Group
turned into a loss of approximately RMB2,624,000 in 2016.

Due to the general poor market and increasing competition, the Group
strived to survive in the harsh environment by maintaining a simple
organizational structure and controlling costs to a minimum level.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

An analysis by reportable segments is provided in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Gross profit margin was 11.8% (2015 gross profit margin: 3.5%).
Revenue decreased by RMB42,090,000 due to the poor market
conditions during the year and the fact that we ceased to sell low-margin
products. This had however resulted in an improvement in gross profit
margin in 2016.

The Group recorded other revenue of approximately RMB512,000 in
2015, which included mainly government grants and rental income. In
2016, there were no such incomes and other revenue decreased to
RMB5,000 only which represented mainly interest income. For details,
please refer to notes 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

In 2015, the Group recorded waiver of other payables, accruals and
receipt in advances of approximately RMB5,938,000; reversal of trade
payables of approximately RMB850,000; gain on deregistration of a
subsidiary of approximately RMB627,000. There were no such items in
2016, but the Group recorded a gain on disposal of investment
properties and prepaid lease payment of approximately RMB2,343,000
in 2016.

Administrative expenses recorded an increase by approximately
RMB1,310,000 over the previous year. The increase in administrative
expenses were mainly due to the increase in legal and professional fee
(2016: RMB2,358,000; 2015: RMB711,000) and the increase in
impairment loss on trade receivables by approximately RMB445,000. The
additional legal and professional fees were incurred in relation to,
amongst others, the Mandatory Cash Offer.

No finance cost was incurred because there were no bank borrowings.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB2,624,000 (2015: profit of
RMB4,524,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Current assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB15,297,000 (2015: RMB11,068,000), representing an increase of
approximately RMB4,229,000 compared with last year. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in trade receivables by approximately
RMB4,420,000, the increase in bank balances and cash by
approximately RMB1,461,000 and the decrease in prepaid lease
payment and paid in advances by approximately RMB1,105,000.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current liabilities of
approximately RMB66,466,000 (2015: RMB64,457,000), which
represented an increase of approximately RMB2,009,000. The major
changes were the increase in amount due to a former shareholder; the
increase in amount due to a major shareholder; the increase in trade
payables, other payables and accruals and the decrease in other
borrowings.

8 ANNUAL REPORT 2016
TR

ZE-RF AEEHRGSHREEMEMNER R
A& A R FERFIEL A R 5,938,000 : # 0
JERE 5 BR AR 850,000t « —RIKI B A
AREEREN R ELNARYE27,000T c = F
—ANFUWELEEFEE - AAEBRR T
FHELEMERBANRAERERBSRSOAR
52,343,000 7T °

THERREFENOARE1,310,0007T © 17
REREMEZHRNEZEREEBREN(=ZZ
—NEFE: AR®23580007T ZE—RF: A
R®711,0007T) K FEWCE 5 BR 50 (B B 18 38 hn
HARME 4450007 © BEINER N EEEB R |
(KR eiE) RfMRe20ES -

HIORBIRITEE  MAEBELREKAE

HE-Z—XE+-_A=+—HILFE ~QF
B AELEBEAN ARE2624,0007(=ZF
—HF RF AR 4,524,0007T) °

B 5 1ol R
RBEERER

R-TB—XRE+-A=+—0 AEENRHE
EHAARE15297,000T(ZE—HF : AR
#11,068,0007T ) B A F MO AR K
4,229,0007C ° MENVEEE M EERAE B EY
E SR ING AR 4,420,0007T ~ SRIT4E &4
MR &4 A R ¥ 1,461,000 7T & FE L & 3K
H RN TR H AR 1,105,000 7T °

R_ZE—AF+_A=+—8 A&EENRHE
BEHABARKE66,466,000L(ZE—HF: AR
#64,457,0007C ) M A F MO AR K
2,009,0007T © + Z &) & fET —F AR R RIE
N AR ETEREFIELEN  ENESER
Ko HAER R R ERT B RSN A RH A E
R -



Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net liabilities of approximately
RMB51,078,000 (2015: RMB48,378,000). The Group’s operations and
investments were financed principally by its internal resources, amount
due from a major shareholder and a former shareholder, other borrowings
and shareholders’ equity.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB2,834,000 (2015: RMB1,373,000), with no bank
borrowings (2015: Nil).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had other borrowings of
approximately RMB6,220,000 (2015: RMB11,000,000).

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2016 was 40.4% (2015:
68.4%), which was expressed as a percentage of other borrowings over
the total assets.

OUTLOOK

As the general economic growth in China slowed down in recent years,
competition in the controllers systems market becomes keener and
keener. In this connection, we will continue to implement stringent cost
control measures in 2017. Going forward, the Group will explore business
opportunities on intelligence control system for heavy industrial uses such
as application for industrial robotics.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant outstanding
capital commitments (2015: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITION

The Group did not have any significant investment and acquisition during
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities of the Group during the year are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 15 employees (2015: 22

BERMESBR

EC:— —RNFETZA=+—H AEEF15HE

employees). Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms B (=Z—F4% : 22%{E8) - L REL2HT5
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual 1§ &1.;‘%1@,@\ MRIR BERDEHRMET © 1%
employees. Bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to  { %‘Ji’%fﬁiﬁmﬁ’ﬁéiﬂﬁﬁ%@ﬁ ERBHER
employees in recognition and reward of their contribution. Other benefits 5 & & #E) - E( BN BIERRAKET 21 -
include contributions to retirement scheme.
An analysis of employees of the Group by their duties for each of the REZE T —pF - —RFRZT-RF
three years ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 is set out below +=ZA= + H JJ:f1I¢J*K¢ EH&%’ i
REBREWT :
Headcount for the year
ended 31 December
BET-HA=1T—HLEENAH
2014 2015 2016
— P4 —hHF —RE
Sales and marketing HE RIS HERE 6 5 6
Research & Development 2% 3 2 0
Production (including quality control) AE(BRIEEEEH) 2 2 1
Finance and administration B 7% R AT 13 11 7
Procurement RHE 4 2 1
28 22 15
RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES HEENER

The Group ensures that all the employees are reasonably remunerated
and maintains good relationship with its employees. For details, please
refer to the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Employees and Remuneration Policies” and “Report of the Directors —
Corporate Social Responsibilities” of this annual report, respectively. The
Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for its
employees and encourage them to have a work-life balance.

On 4 November 2016, a former employee of the Company, filed a claim
with the Labour Tribunal of Hong Kong against the Company and its
subsidiary, Hong Kong Wan Li Enterprise Company Limited (together the
“Respondent”) for a compensation of approximately HK$2,600,000. As
of the reporting date, the dispute between the Claimant and the Group
are still in progress, the result of the case has not yet come up and the
Directors are of the opinion that the Company has strong grounds to
defend the claim. An amount of RMB86,000 has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Details of the dispute are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, there was a pledge bank deposit amounted to
USD14,501 (2015: USD14,500) for issuance of a bank guarantee of
USD14,500 (2015: USD14,500). Except for this, the Group had no other
borrowings or charges on the Group’s assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries by the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM

Please refer to page 38 for information about risk management and
internal control system.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group was in compliance
with all the laws and regulations applicable to the business operations of
the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

According to our business nature and pursuant to the relevant laws of
the PRC/Hong Kong, there are no specific environmental standards and/
or requirements for conducting the Group’s business.

Please refer to Environmental, Social and Governance Report on page 44
1o page 49 for details about environmental, social and governance matters.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers. The sales
personnel make regular visits and/or phone calls to the customers. If
there is any complaint from customers, it will be reported to the
management and immediate remedial action will be taken and feedback
from customers will be followed till settlement of the complaint.
Thereafter, the cause of such complaint will be studied, analysed and
evaluated and recommendations will be in place for improvement.

The Group also maintains good relationship with its suppliers. During the
year, no complaint was received from the suppliers and there were no
disputed debts or unsettled debts and all the debts were settled on or
before due dates or a latest date as mutually agreed.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE
Credit Risk

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to the failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arose from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other debtor at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Please refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for details
of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group was not exposed to any fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group was exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable rate bank balances. However, the Group considered that the
effect of the cash flow interest rate is minimal and no sensitivity analysis
to interest rate risk is presented. Please refer to note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements for details of interest rate risk.

Liquidity Risk

The Group was exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December 2016 as its
financial assets due within one year were less than its financial liabilities
due with in one year. The Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB51,169,000 as at 31 December 2016. The liquidity of
the Group depends upon the positive cash flows expected to be
generated from the Group’s future operations and the Group’s ability to
successfully obtain new working capital in order to meet the Group’s
future working capital and financial requirements. Please refer to note 7
to the consolidated financial statements for details of liquidity risk.
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

Currency risk

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and USD. The Group’s foreign currency
is mainly HKD. The Group has certain portion of the other receivables,
tax recoverable, bank balances and cash and other payables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency to which
they relate.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate.

A
1\

B

\
i

AEBENTEGERE  ABARXHAARE R
EUHERGEE - ARBZINETERET - K
SEET O WEMBUKIRR - ATKEIFIE - R
TTHRERR IR 2 A K2 B JE A< BR XA B2 2 4B RE T RE
BEAINEHETHE

TRIAAEERRERARCOHEREERBECA
B AN ERNEER AN EREFHE) Pr
SIBMEBRR -

2016 2015

—E-XEF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

Assets BE 69 206
Liabilities afE (936) (442)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise. Please refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for
details of currency risk.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

As from 31 December 2016 to the date of this annual report, no
significant events have occurred.

DIVIDENDS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year under review (2015: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 BEEMeSREEABNEEF

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of 7 Directors including 4 executive
Directors, and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Keng, aged 41, was served as a chairman of f iT ¥ & # R
BBRAF] (Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd) since 2005. He has
extensive experience in corporate management. He worked in the Bank
of China Shaoxing Branch from July 1997 to January 2005, during which
he served as the account manager of the corporate account department,
the head of the sub-operating office and the president of Zhuiji Xincheng
Sub-branch respectively. Mr. He graduated from Zhejiang University with
a major in accounting and financial management. As at the date of this
report, Mr. He Keng is deemed to be interested in 370,000,000 domestic
shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Wu Shanhong, aged 31, is also the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd in September
2006. She has years of work experience in finance. Ms. Wu Shanhong
graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with a major in
accounting.

Mr. Chen Weigiang, aged 35, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co.,
Ltd in March 2004. Mr. Chen Weigiang graduated from Southwest
University of Science and Technology with a major in economic
information management and computer application.

Mr. Ding Cheng, aged 29, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co.,
Ltd in January 2010. He has extensive experience in sales of machines.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 BEEMeSREEABNEEF

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, aged 45, Mr. Kwok currently has been
providing corporate advising services as professional accountant in Hong
Kong. He has also been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Siberian Mining Group Company Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), since February 2014. He was previously appointed as
financial controller, company secretary and authorised representative of
Forebase International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwok is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. He holds a Master of Professional
Accounting Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master
of Corporate Governance Degree from the Open University of Hong Kong
and a Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University).

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong, aged 42, engaged in sales and management in the
pharmaceutical industry since August 1995. He is currently the managing
director of 53 BT 8 H = B8 2 5 R /A A] (Jiaxing Boyada Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd*) and has extensive experience in management of
pharmaceutical marketing. Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong graduated from Zhejiang
Institute of Silk Textiles with a major in dyeing and finishing.

Mr. Zhang Tieyi, aged 41, joined M N B E B X BREE R 2 7
(Hangzhou Saifute Traffic Facilities Co., Ltd*) in May 2006. He was a
project manager and person-in-charge of JT & F 2L £ E AR A 7
(Jiangsu Chengyu Construction Group Co., Ltd*). He has extensive
experience in project management. Mr. Zhang Tieyi graduated from
Chongging Architectural University with a major in industrial equipment
installation.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 BEEMeSREEABNEEF

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Shi Huanmiao, aged 32, has about 10 years experience in project
management. Mr. Shi graduated from & JE L% K£Z: (Hefei University of
Technology*) with a major in science and technology of optical
information in July 2007.

Mr. Zhang Shenggen, aged 69, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool
Co., Ltd in May 2004 and is currently the head of the corporate
management department Zhejiang of RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
Mr. Zhang Shenggen graduated from #7111 K22 (University of Hangzhou*)
with a major in administrative management.

Mr. Chen Yuankang, aged 42, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool
Co., Ltd in April 2002 and is currently the head of the production
department of Zhejiang Zhuiji RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen
Yuankang is experienced in production management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Company Secretary

Mr. Tsang Chi Wai Rock, aged 53, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. He holds a Master of Professional Accounting Degree from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
extensive experience in finance and management.
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Re ort of the Directors
% wEE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are the sales of intelligent
controller systems for consumer electrical and electronic appliances and
sales of small electrical appliances. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating segments
is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 57 to page 58.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2016.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 61. The
Company has no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2016.
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Re ort of the Directors
% HEE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company and no restriction against such rights under
the laws of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which will oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 131 and 132.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or agreed to be
granted by the Company to any of its Directors, Supervisors or
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Keng (Chairman)
(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Ms. Wu Shanhong (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Chen Weigiang (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Ding Cheng (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Guo An (resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (resigned on 15 September 2016)
Mr. Yu Nian Hua (resigned on 7 June 2016)
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Re ort of the Directors
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping (resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zheng Xin (resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan (resigned on 13 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Tieyi (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (resigned on 7 June 2016)
Mr. Lu Song Qian
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (resigned on 13 December 2016)

Supervisors

Mr. Shi Huanmiao (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Shenggen (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Chen Yuankang (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mrs. Mao Lihong (resigned on 7 June 2016)
Mrs. Shi Weina (resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Li Yuhua (resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Lu Guo Xun
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and resigned 13 December 2016)

Members of the Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Tieyi (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (resigned on 7 June 2016)
Mr. Lu Song Qian
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (resigned on 13 December 2016)

Members of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zhang Tieyi (Chairman)
(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. He Keng (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (resigned on 7 June 2016)
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (resigned on 13 December 2016)
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Report of the Directors
EEgHEE

Members of the Nomination Committee

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (Chairman)

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. He Keng (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Tieyi (appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (resigned on 7 June 2016)

In accordance with Articles 88 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors and Supervisors appointed by the Board since
last shareholders’ annual general meeting shall be elected at the coming
shareholders’ general meeting for a term of three years. A Director or
supervisor may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiration
of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on page 14 to page 16.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years from his/her date of
appointment as a Director or, as the case may be, as a Supervisor and
thereafter subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice to the other party.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or Supervisors who are proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Re ort of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts disclosed
above, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 31 December 2016, the interests and long positions of each Director,
Chief Executive and Supervisor of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing
by directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of RMB0.10 each of the Company as at 31 December
2016:

Long positions in shares

Name of Director/

ESRESREONES

BEXFIRBENEZREZORB QI B
FELGEHRFRETMAFRE AR REMEBE AR
BEITVHAREXEME BEARARAES
FEERETERIEERREEERREANEL -

EE FETRABRESRAQXFAR
ek £

RZFB-REFT-A=1—H FARAZEE"
TETRABREENARRREREEE(E
& ARSI GRD([FE KRG ) FEXVER)
i - HERD REST  BEARFIRER
7 LR RPIE 352 15 R E RFEM B M AT
BB RERE  IREFEHARZAEARRA

ARIERES EHRR(AIER ETARAD S
BAB IR E R EITRXHNRIEFECHMEAR

A MR PR MR T

R-E—RF+- ﬁ T—HARREREEA
R¥E010TER

RO EFE
Approximate
percentage of Approximate
shareholding held in percentage of

Chief Executive/ Domestic Shares of RMB0.10 each same class of shareholding in the
Supervisor (the “Domestic Shares”) held Nature of interest securities registered capital
EE TEMH FRsREEARK010TH ERERES EEmEX
IN-V4 33 RER(TWERD#E BEHE BABRED L BARRES L
Mr. He Keng 322,675,000 Domestic Shares (note 2) Interest of 87.21% 64.53%
{AEEE 322,675,000 k& ik (Fi5E 2) corporation (Note 2)
EEEE (FE2)
1,000 H Shares Beneficial owner (Note 3) 0.0008% 0.0002%
1,000 B H % BREAA(H5E3)
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1) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMBO.10 each, in the registered capital of the
Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in Renminbi. “H Share(s)”
represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each in the
registered capital of the Company, which are listed on the GEM and subscribed for
and traded in Hong Kong dollars.

2) On 11 July 2016, Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Robot Company Limited (“Zhejiang
RuiYuan”) entered into a share transfer agreement with (Wan Li Group Company
Limited (& 23R & E D BR A ] (“Wanli”), Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (“Mr. Qi”) and other
parties, pursuant to which, among other things, Zhejiang RuiYuan agreed to acquire (i)
306,900,000 Domestic Shares held by Wanli and 15,775,000 Domestic Shares held
by Mr. Qi (collectively the “First Batch Sale Shares”) and (i) 47,325,000 Domestic
Shares held by Mr. Qi (the “Second Batch Sale Shares”). After completion of the
transfer of the First Batch Sale Shares on 18 July 2016, Zhejiang RuiYuan and parties
acting in concert with it owned an aggregate of 322,675,000 Domestic Shares,
representing approximately 64.53% of the entire issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2016. The transfer of the Second Batch Sale Shares from Mr. Qi to
Zhejiang RuiYuan has not taken place as at 31 December 2016.

Q) As a result of the Mandatory Cash Offer which closed at 4 pm on 14 September 2016,
Mr. He acquired valid acceptances in respect of 1,000 H Shares. Accordingly, Mr. He
was interested in 1,000 H Shares as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors,
Chief Executives and Supervisors (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) have any interest in, or had they been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO).

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement enabling the Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors of the Company to hold any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation.

Furthermore, at no time during the year was there any arrangement
whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or its associated corporation.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PARTIES IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

According to the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
section 336 of the SFO, as at 31 December 2016, the Company had
been notified the following substantial shareholders’ were interested in
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in

g%&i&ﬁf&%ﬁmﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁg

RIRBEREH L EGIIFE B IEREFENTE
PRERERERMER R
B ARREMAEUTEZRREFARRCHE
TTRARE% A bR - BL iR Iﬁ.ﬁr)\ii

—RET A=+

addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors, Chief FiEEEEES - TE/THA B MESHER
Executives and Supervisors.
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
shareholding held shareholding in
Name of Substantial Total number of in same class of the registered
Shareholder Shares interested Nature of interest securities capital
EEERIE HEmER
TERREZEB EERRNRHEY BEME BARRBED L BasREIH
TR BB AROERAR (D THE]) 322,675,000 Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 87.21% 64.53%
(Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent 322,675,000 R W& R EREAA
Robot Company Limited) (Notes 2 and 3)
(“Zhejiang Ruiyan’) (B2 3)
ML SRS RFERA 322,675,000 Domestic Shares Interest of corporation 87.21% 64.53%
(ML) 322,675,000 X W& EEER
(Hangzhou Qindie Electronic (Notes 2 and 4)
Equipment Company Limited) (Ko k4)
(“Hangzhou Qindie”)
ZELRMSRERRAR([EELE]) 322,675,000 Domestic Shares Interest of corporation 87.21% 64.53%
(Zhuji Jinfu Electrical Equipment 322,675,000 W E EERER
Company Limited”) (“Zhuiji Jinfu”) (Notes 2 and 4)
(Hiz#2K4)
& ([ 54 ]) (Mr. He Keng) (‘Mr. He") 322,675,000 Domestic Shares ~ Interest of corporation 87.21% 64.53%
322,675,000 kW E K EEER
(Notes 2 and 4)
(Hz#2K4)
1,000 H Shares Beneficial owner 0.0008% 0.0002%
1,000 HiR EaBA
(Note 5)
(Hizts)
%2 (Mr. Tang Jingfeng) 322,675,000 Domestic Shares Interest of corporation 87.21% 64.53%
322,675,000k W& R EEES
(Notes 2 and 4)
(B2 k4)
RS (Mr. Zhao Zhongxin) 322,675,000 Domestic Shares  Interest of corporation 87.21% 64.53%
322,675,000 kW& R EEES
(Notes 2 and 4)
(B2 k4)
el #5718 (Mr. He Yanggen) 322,675,000 Domestic Shares Interest of corporation 87.21% 64.53%
322,675,000 kW& R EEES
(Notes 2 and 4)
(B2 k4)
BB (7754 ]) (Mr. Qi Yong Qiang)(“Mr. Q") 47,245,000 Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 12.79% 9.47%
47,245,000 FR & ERBEAA
(Note 2)
(Hrit2)
Martin Currie China Hedge Fund Limited 14,245,000 H Shares Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%
14,245,000 f& HAR Bz (7 RERRE
Martin Currie Investment 14,245,000 H Shares Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%
Management Limited 14,245,000 % H 817 RERE
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1) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMBO.10 each, in the registered capital of the
Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in Renminbi. “H Share(s)”
represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each in the
registered capital of the Company, which are listed on the GEM and subscribed for
and traded in Hong Kong dollars.

2 On 11 July 2016, Zhejiang RuiYuan entered into a share transfer agreement with (Wan
Li Group Company Limited (& 2 % & B #& 47 A IR 2 7)) (‘Wanli”), Mr. Qi Yong Qiang
(“Mr. Qi) and other parties, pursuant to which, among other things, Zhejiang RuiYuan
agreed to acquire (i) 306,900,000 Domestic Shares held by Wanli and 15,775,000
Domestic Shares held by Mr. Qi (collectively the “First Batch Sale Shares”) and (i)
47,325,000 Domestic Shares held by Mr. Qi (the “Second Batch Sale Shares”). After
completion of the transfer of the First Batch Sale Shares on 18 July 2016, Zhejiang
RuiYuan and parties acting in concert with it owned an aggregate of 322,675,000
Domestic Shares, representing approximately 64.53% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2016. The transfer of the Second Batch Sale
Shares from Mr. Qi to Zhejiang RuiYuan has not taken place as at 31 December 2016.

Q) Zhejiang RuiYuan is a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and is owned as to 55% by Hangzhou Qindie and as to 45% by Zhuiji Jinfu.

(4) Hangzhou Qindie is a company established in the PRC and is owned as to 51% by Mr.
He and as to 49% by Mr. Tang Jingfeng. Zhuiji Jinfu is a company established in the
PRC and is owned as to 50% by Mr. Zhao Zhongxin and as to 50% by Mr. He
Yanggen.

5) As a result of the Mandatory Cash Offer which closed at 4pm on 14 September 2016,
Mr. He acquired valid acceptances in respect of 1,000 H Shares. Accordingly, Mr. He
was interested in 1,000 H Shares as at 31 December 2016.

Save as discussed above, the Directors are not aware of any person
(other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Chief Executives’ and Supervisors’ Interests” in the
shares of the Company above) holding any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required to be recorded in the register pursuant to section
336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Director’s
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong) when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on page 27 to
page 43 of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 18%
— five largest customers combined 65%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 20%
— five largest suppliers combined 73%

FARET LK EBRAARR2EHEMNER
MOXBHEERITREL °

BEFFHREEX

RARIEHEEERS
%é@ﬁiz&@uﬁ*f\ ﬁé%&ﬁﬂu\%zﬁr‘*&
SEEE 2 RTY - ER B BRI E AT
EgSCRE A TR (BB EDIF622F) 5470
BEHRENEERFR 2 EFSRERED LS
(BB EDIE 6225 ) FE391(1)(a) (I RBISF LK -

EIEABR LB A D

ARFZEEERBEBRNAFRE7TEH43
]

KERE

EEETEARBHRE_T-—R"F+t-_A=1—

BLEEORERE -
ZTREZABERE
RBE-2—AE+-A=+—RAILEE AL
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HE
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has an interest in the major suppliers and major customers noted
above.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out in
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 in the Corporate
Governance Report of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 are disclosed on page 27 to page 43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group, are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the transactions described therein fall under the definition of
connected transaction which are not fully exempted from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirement under chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events after the end of reporting period.
COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business that directly or indirectly competes with the
business of the Group or has any other conflicts of interest.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year have been audited by KTC Partners
CPA Limited, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

He Keng
Chairman

Ningbo, The PRC, 29 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(effective from 1 April 2012) as stated in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules except the following deviations (Code Provisions A.2.1):

Mr. He Keng is the Chairman of the Board. The Company has no such
title as the chief executive officer and the daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive directors as
well as the senior management. The Board is of the view that although
there is no chief executive officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced
individuals and meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting the
operations of the Company.

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is
set out below.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has appointed 3 independent non-executive Directors.
The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company still considers all
the existing independent non-executive Directors to be independent. All
the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a three-year
term.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
establishing good corporate governance practices and procedures. The
maintenance of high standard of business ethics and corporate
governance practices has always been one of the Group’s goals. The
Company believes that good corporate governance provides a framework
that is essential for effective management, successful business growth
and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.
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The Board has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the GEM Listing
Rules. Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance the Group’s
internal controls and procedures in light of changes in regulations and
developments in best practices. To us, maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices is not just complying with the provisions
but also the intent of the regulations to enhance corporate performance
and accountability.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the code provisions of
the CG Code throughout the year, except where otherwise stated.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by Directors of the
Group as set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the GEM
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The
procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the GEM Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and its website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:

Executive Directors Mr. He Keng (Chairman)
Ms. Wu Shanhong
Mr. Chen Weigiang

Mr. Ding Cheng

Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong
Mr. Zhang Tieyi

Each independent non-executive Director has given an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the Company
considers them to be independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprises seven members,
including four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the members possesses sufficient experience and
qualification which enable them to discharge their duties properly.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including age, education background, skills and
experience.

The chairman is responsible for the formulation and review of the Group’s
overall development strategies. The daily operation is delegated to the
executive Directors and senior management. None of the independent
non-executive Directors is interested in the business of the Group and
their independence has to be confirmed upon appointment or
reappointment. Currently, there is no financial, business, family or other
relevant material relationship among the existing Directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, all the Directors
shall be elected at the general meeting of the shareholders and the term
of office shall be three years, renewable upon reappointment or re-
election.

Board meetings are conducted on a periodic basis and with reference to
the operation needs. During the year, the board held 14 meetings and
the attendance of the Directors is set out on page 30.
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, a total of 14 Board
meetings, 1 annual general meeting (‘AGM”) and 2 extraordinary general
meetings (“‘EGM”) were held and the attendance of each Director is set

out as follows:

Number of meetings attended in

ERHETE
RBEE-ZT—A"F+_A=-+ A LHBREE

A ARFEHBITUUREZEEHE 1 ARR
BEXRg((REBFRE ) R2RBRRFFIARE
(TRREFRARE])  SUEZZHFBERLEHTIW
T

Attendance/Number of meetings held

the year ended 31 December 2016 HE/BTEERE
REBE-Z-~¥+t-A=1-H Board
LEEREEERRE meetings AGM EGM
Name of Director BENS EZE8E HRRBEFXE RREAxE
Mr. He Keng (Chairman)(appointed on 13 December 2016) (8% 4 (8)(RZE—AFT-AT=REZ) 314 al 02
Ms. Wu Shanhong (appointed on 13 December 2016) SR (R=F- /\ﬁ' A+=REZA) 3/14 0/1 0/2
Mr. Chen Weigjang (appointed on 13 December 2016) BRERLER_F-AET-ATZAEZO) 3/14 01 0/2
Mr. Ding Cheng (@ppointed on 13 December 2016) TREE(RZE-—RFT-A+=0EZA) 3/14 0/1 0/2
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (appointed on 13 December 2016)  REkEA (N -E— R ET - T=BEZT) 314 o 02
Mr. Zhang Tieyi (appointed on 13 December 2016) BERAA(WZE—RETA+ZREZRD) 3/14 01 0/2
Mr. Eddie Kwok Kim Hung Pl 14/14 1 2/2
Director resigned during the year. ERBICES
Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman) (resigned on 13 December 2016) #EIZ %4 (1) (RZE—A~FT-AT=HET) 11/14 01 2/2
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (resigned on 15 September 2016) TEBEER-E-~ENATRERT) 6/14 01 0/2
Mr. Yu Nian Hua (resigned on 7 June 2016) SEELE(MNZE—RENALHET) 2114 al 02
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping (resigned on 13 December 2016) ZETRE(RZE—FTATZHEMA) 11/14 0/1 2/2
Mr. Zheng Xin (resigned on 13 December 2016) BHEE(RZE—~E+-AT=HET) 114 0/1 2/2
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan (resigned on 13 December 2016) FEXELE(RZZ- FE+-A+=REMA) 1/14 01 2/2
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong (appointed on 7 June 2016 REREAE(RZZ-RE ALAERER

and resigned on 13 December 2016) RZE-R~ETZATZHET) 8/14 01 12
Mr. Lu Song Qian (appointed on 7 June 2016 BRTFREMZE-REAALAREAR

and resigned on 13 December 2016) RZE—R"ETZATZHET) 8/14 0/1 12
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin(resigned on 7 June 2016) ZRBEERZT-RESALAEL) 114 1N 0/2
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai(resigned on 13 December 2016) BEREFLA(WZF-AET-A+ZHEL) 10/14 1 12

The chairman attended AGM to answer questions and collect views of
shareholders. All Directors, company secretary and the auditors had
attended the AGM to answer questions at the meeting.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and be
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group’s overall strategies, authorising the development
plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating performance;
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system; supervising and
managing management’s performance of the Group; and setting the
Group’s values and standards. The Board delegates the day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group to management.
The delegated functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure
that they accommodate the needs of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. At least
10 days’ notice of regular Board meetings is given to all Directors and
they can include matters for discussion in the agenda as they think fit.
The agenda accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
3 days or a shorter period agreed by the directors before the date of a
regular Board meeting in order to allow sufficient time for the Directors to
review the documents.

Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
perusal and comments prior to confirmation of the minutes. The Board
also ensures that it is supplied in a timely manner with all necessary
information in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge
its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled
to have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. He Keng (“Mr. He”) is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. He is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and policy making of the
Group.

The Company has no such title as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monitored by the executive Directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no chief executive officer,
the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals and meet from time to
time to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term
which may be extended as each and the Company may agree.

The current articles of association of the Company provide that subject to
the manner of retirement by rotation of Directors as from time to time
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation and that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every 3 years.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A
record of the training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended

31 December 2016 is summarized below:

RE-T—AF+-A=+—ALEE 58F
FrEE 52 BRI BT

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/conference(s)
relevant to the business or
Directors’ duties
HEERERSESHEZ
1258 -P i V& A

Mr. He Keng (Chairman)

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Ms. Wu Shanhong

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Chen Weigiang

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Ding Cheng

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhang Tieyi

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman)

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang

(resigned on 15 September 2016)
Mr. Yu Nian Hua

(resigned on 7 June 2016)
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zheng Xin

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin

(resigned on 7 June 2016)
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong

(appointed on 7 June 2016 and

resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Lu Song Qian

(appointed on 7 June 2016 and

resigned on 13 December 2016)

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous

BESHEIEYD)

(R=ZE—RE+-A+=HEZF) v/
S L+

(RZE—XRE+-_RA+=BEZET) v/
PRIE® A

(R—ZE—RE+-A+=AEZE) v/
TR E

(RZE—XRE+-_RB+=REZE) v/
ok KA

(RZE—XRE+-_RA+=BEZE) v/
EEREAE

(R—ZE—RE+-A+=AEZE) v/
HBELSE(EE)

(R=ZE—RE+_A+=HET) v/
JTBELE

(RZE—A"FNLA+HBET) v/
ROERE

(RZZ—ARFEANALHET) v
ZEFEE

(R—Z—XE+-A+=HEHE) v/
B E

(BN=—Z—XF+-A+=HFT) v/
HER A

(RZZ—XE+-A+=HEHTD) v/
PRI v/
ZEEREE

(RZZE—RFNALHEHT) v
BEREZR oA

(R=ZZ—AF+-—A+Z=ZHEHTD) v/
KELRE

(RZZ— X E~ATtHEZIK

R-E—RE+-A+=BFT) v/
BT RAE

(R=ZE—X"E~ALtHEZT

FRZE—AF+-A+=8FT) v/

BEEHTRABESLBR BB AR

F
professional development and are committed to participating any suitable 2 H{E{a] & 2 553l - DA R R B E 2 A5
training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. TR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
3 independent non-executive Directors, who have reviewed the annual
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016. Mr. Kwok
Kim Hung, Eddie, is the chairman of the Audit Committee who has
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Our Audit Committee has primary responsibility for monitoring the quality
of internal control and ensuring that the financial performance of the
Company is properly measured and reported on, receiving and reviewing
reports from management and the auditors relating to the annual,
quarterly and interim results, and monitoring the accounting and internal
control system in use throughout the Group. The Audit Committee held 4
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016.

According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held at least 4 times a year. 4 meetings were held for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

During the year under review, the Group did not have an internal audit
function but had appointed an external consultant to review the material
controls of the Group on a continuous basis and aims to cover all major
operations of the Group on a cyclical basis. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, reviewed the appraisal performed by the an independent
auditor on the Company’s risk management and internal control systems.
Based on information furnished to it and its own observations, the Board
is satisfied that the present internal control and risk management systems
of the Group are effective and adequate in all material respects.
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Attendance/

Number of meetings
held in the financial

year ended 31 December

2016
RBE-Z—XKF
+=ZA=+—HIL
MEREERBE BT
Name of members of Audit Committee EREEERENR EEXY
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman) SRS AE () 4/4
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (appointed on 7 June 2016 REKEE
and resigned on 13 December 2016) (RZEBE—ARFNALHEZTER
RZZE—RF+AT=BFT) 1/4
Mr. Zhang Tieyi BEBREE
(appointed on 13 December 2016) (RZZE—RFE+ZA+=BEZT) 1/4
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (resigned on 7 June 2016) ZEREER T —R"EXALAHT) 1/4
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai PR A
(resigned on 13 December 2016) (R=ZZ—RF+ZA+T=BF1) 3/4
Mr. Lu Song Qian BIATEAE
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and (R=ZZ—XREXALBEZTK
resigned on 13 December 2016) RZE—R"F+ZA+=HHT) 2/4
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At the meetings held during the year, in performing its duties in
accordance with its terms of reference, the work performed by the Audit
Committee included:

(@ review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system and risk management of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(b)  recommendation to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of the external auditor and approval of their
remuneration;

(c)  determination of the nature and scope of the audit; and

(d)  review the financial statements for the relevant periods.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3
independent non-executive Directors and 1 executive Director. Mr. Zhang
Tieyi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the chairman of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive Directors, making recommmendation to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management and the Remuneration Committee has adopted the
approach under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the code provisions to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

Meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a
year. 2 meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2016.
During the meeting, remuneration packages, performance and service
contracts of the Directors had been reviewed and approved, no change
has been proposed to the remuneration policy.
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The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

BEMKBZHFEBEREIIMT -

Attendance/

Number of meetings
held in the financial

year ended 31 December

2016
RBEZZ—RF
+t=ZHA=+—-BLt
Name of members of MBEEREE BT
Remuneration Committee FMEEEREME SERE
Mr. Zhang Tieyi (Chairman) BERREE(FE)
(appointed on 13 December 2016) (R=ZEBE—RETZAT=AEZMT) 172
Mr. He Keng T4 5 A
(appointed on 13 December 2016) (RZZ—RETA+=REZE) 1/2
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong SREKIEE
(appointed on 13 December 2016) (RZZE—RF+=ZA+=BEZT) 172
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (Chairman) ZXRIREE(EE)
(resigned on 7 June 2016) (R=ZE—REALAEMT 172
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (resigned on 13 December 2016) FEfEZR 44
(RZZT—RF+ZAT+=HET) 1/2
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie P A 2/2
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEE
The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) AR FN T —_F=H -+ - HKZH3LE

was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3 independent non-
executive Directors and 1 executive Director. Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong is
currently the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least once a year, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members (select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships), assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the Chairman; and reporting to the Board on its
decisions or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions.
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Meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year.
3 meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2016. Issues
concerning the structure, size and composition of the Board were

discussed.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

PBIT-REH RBEE
TZA=+—BIFER
é%ﬁSanaﬁ ’éﬁ ET.:rraTﬁFﬂi%?Z S
A RAEKIER °

LK B Z HFEBREIIMT -

Attendance/

Number of meetings
held in the financial

year ended 31 December

2016
mﬁi /\$
+=ZRA= 'f‘ —AL

Name of members of MHREERHEE
Nomination Committee REZESREMA BOGBRHE
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (Chairman) RENKEE(EF)

(appointed on 13 December 2016) (RZZE—RE+ZAT=RAEZMF) 1/3
Mr. He Keng AR St A=

(appointed on 13 December 2016) (RZE-—RE+_A+=REZE) 1/3
Mr. Zhang Tieyi SR AE

(appointed on 13 December 2016) (RZZ2—AF+A+=BEZF) 1/3
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (Chairman) Bt R e A (F/E)

(resigned on 13 December 2016) (RZE—RE+ZAT=AFT) 2/3
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (resigned on 7 June 2016) ZEMREA

(RZZ—RFRALBEE) 2/3

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie RIS E 3/3
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREZ
Financial Reporting BT ER 3R

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial position and
prospects of the business of the Company so as to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report) for preparing the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders of
the Company. A statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate system of internal
controls and risk management within the Group and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The systems of internal controls and risk management are
designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations, to safeguard
assets and to ensure the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. They are also designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material
misstatement or loss can be avoided, and to manage and minimize risks
of failure in operation systems. The Company is committed to
implementing a stricter and more regulated internal control and risk
management procedures in the new financial year.

In the future, the Group will conduct regular review of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems and its effectiveness to ensure the
interest of shareholders is safeguarded.

OBJECTIVES OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The objectives of the risk management and internal control framework of
the Group include:

° to strengthen the Company’s risk management and internal control
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules requirements;

o to establish and constantly improve the risk management and
internal control systems; and

° to keep baseline risks within the acceptable range.
THREE-TIER RISK MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess, mitigate and handle risks. At the first line of defence,
business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring
risks associated with each business or deal. The finance department, as
the second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, oversees and
reports risk management matters to the Board. It ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of defence is effective.
As the final line of defence, the Board together with audit committee of
the Company, with the professional advices and opinions from the
external professional Company by whom internal audit work of the Group
was conducted on annual basis, ensures that the first and second lines
of defence are effective through constant inspection and monitoring.
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PRINCIPLES OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Our risk management and internal control systems involve five elements
as internal environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication and internal supervision. The aim of internal control
is to reasonably guarantee the compliance of its operation and
management with regulations and laws, assets security, and authenticity
and integrity of financial report and related information, improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of operating activities and promote the
realization of development strategy of the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for the appointment
of the external auditors, including the engagement of non-auditing tasks
and fees. During the year under review, the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was audited by KTC Partners CPA
Limited and the fees paid for the audit of the Group’s financial statements
are set out as follows:
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Fee paid/payable

B A NE A

RMB’000

Services Rendered Fri2 B9 IR 7 AREF T
Audit Service EIZIRTE 541
Non-audit services IEEILRTE 214
755

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Wai Rock (“Mr. Tsang”) was appointed as the Company
secretary of the Company on 5 October 2016. The biographical details of
Mr. Tsang are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Tsang has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial
year ended 31 December 2016.
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INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company places great emphasis on its relationship and
communication with investors. The Company has numerous
communication channels, such as press conference and seminars, to
communicate with the media, analysts and fund managers. Designated
senior management staff holds dialogue with analysts, fund managers
and investors, who are also arranged to visit the Company and
investment projects from time to time, so as to keep them abreast of the
Group’s business and latest developments. In addition, investors can
also visit the Company’s website at www.ruiyuanhk.com for the most
updated information and the status of the business development of the
Group.

The Company has made changes to the constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2016. Investors can obtain the latest
constitutional documents of the Company from the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management recognise the responsibility of
safeguarding the interest of shareholders of the Company and provide
highly transparent and real-time information on the Company so as to
keep the shareholders and investors abreast of the Company’s position
and help them to make the best investment decision. The Company
believes that maintaining good and effective communication with
shareholders can facilitate the shareholders’ understanding of the
business performance and strategies of the Group. The Board and senior
management also recognise the responsibility of safeguarding the interest
of shareholders of the Company. In order to safeguard the shareholders’
interest, the Company reports its financial and operating performance to
shareholders through annual reports, interim reports and quarterly
reports. Shareholders of the Company can also obtain information of the
Group in time through annual reports, interim reports, quarterly reports,
announcements, circulars, press releases and the Company’s website
www.ruiyuanhk.com.

The annual general meetings are an appropriate forum for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Shareholders can
raise questions directly to the Board in respect of the performance and
future development of the Group at annual general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”).

RIGHT TO CONVENE EGM

Pursuant to Article 52 of the Articles, shareholders individually or jointly
holding 10% or more of the Company’s issued shares carrying voting
rights requests in writing to the Company’s principal office: Suite 5608,
56/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
convening of an extraordinary general meeting.

To convene a general meeting, the Company shall give written notices no
less than 45 days before the date of the meeting, informing all registered
shareholders of the matters proposed to be considered at the meeting
and the date and place of the meeting. Shareholders who intend to
attend the meeting shall return the written reply of attendance to the
Company to be received by the Company 20 days before the date of the
meeting.

The Company shall calculate, according to the written replies received 20
days before the date of the meeting, the number of shares carrying voting
rights represented by the shareholders attending the meeting. The
Company may convene a general meeting if the number of shares
carrying voting rights represented by shareholders intending to attend
aggregates to more than half of the total number of shares carrying such
rights. If not, the Company shall make an announcement within five days,
once again notifying the shareholders of the matters proposed to be
considered and the date and place of the meeting. Once an
announcement has been so made, the Company may convene the
general meeting.
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Shareholders requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting shall abide by the following procedures:

(i) Two or more shareholders holding in aggregate 10% or more of the
shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought to be held
shall sign a written requisition in one or more counterparts in the
same form and contents, requiring the board of Directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting
thereof and stating the matters to be considered at the meeting.
The board of Directors shall, as soon as possible after receipt of the
requisition, convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting thereof. The aforementioned number of shares held by the
shareholders shall be calculated based on the date of submission
of the written requisition.

(i) If the board of Directors fails to issue a notice to convene such
meeting within 30 days from the date of receipt of the requisition,
the requisitioning shareholders may themselves convene such
meeting within 4 months of the receipt of the requisition by the
board of Directors. In so convening a meeting, the requisitioning
shareholders shall adopt a procedure as similar possible as that of
general meetings convened by the board of Directors.

All reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitioning shareholders as a
result of the failure of the board of Directors to convene a meeting and so
convening such meeting themselves as mentioned above shall be borne
by the Company and deducted from any sums due to such defaulting
Directors by the Company.

RIGHT TO PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

Pursuant to Article 54 of the Articles, the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors and shareholders severally or jointly holding 3% or above
shares of the Company shall be entitled to submit proposals to the
Company at the general meeting.

Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 5% or above of shares of the
Company shall have the right to submit a temporary proposal to the
convener in writing 10 days prior to the holding of the general meeting;
the convener shall, within 2 days after its receipt of such a proposal,
issue an supplementary notice of the general meeting, and announce the
contents of the temporary proposal. If the listing rules of the place where
the Company’s shares are listed provide otherwise, such rules shall also
be complied with.
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RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD MEESEHERZEF

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries REGEMEESIELDEH - IS ANENE
shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of business of  E{EH @ BEFE AR T AE S T E L £ b 2
the Company in Hong Kong: Suite 5608, 56/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour 31t /&7 8 /& (175 4 8 185k T I8 £ 15 56125608 =
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary. WHABRTWE -
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Environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues are wide-ranging with
a great impact not only on a company’s long-term business development
but also on the general society. A good ESG performance is
indispensable for a company’s long-term success and sustainable
development. The Company operates its business within all applicable
legal and regulatory frameworks. The Board of Directors has examined
the Company’s corporate governance practices and hereby confirms that
they have complied with all the provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (except Code Provision A.2.1) set forth in Appendix 15 to the Rules
Governing the GEM Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2016.

The Group’s sustainable development governance focuses on
compliance with the applicable environmental and social laws/regulations
in the regions where it operates. The Group’s policies of sustainable
development governance are formulated by its relevant departments
according to actual needs and applicable laws and their implementation
is subject to the supervision and guidance from the Group’s
management.

The Group is grateful for the support from relevant stakeholders in 2016,
including investors, regulators, employees, customers and suppliers.
Looking forward, the Group will continue to review and strengthen its
ESG performance conscientiously for sustainable business development.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group values the opinions of stakeholders and is committed to
responding to their concerns and improving the Company’s performance
in sustainable development by optimizing our communication strategies
and taking concrete actions. We have launched various measures in
continuous efforts to improve communication with stakeholders. Below
are the communication channels between us and stakeholders and their
concemns.
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Stakeholders
F= MBS

Concerns
BEEEE

Communication Channels
BERE

Investors and shareholders Corporate governance, business

WEHRER risks, business operation
EER KLk XBEE

Employees Compensation, health and safety,

E8 training and development
- BEEREZD  BIIRERE

Government Tax compliance, employment

BT security, business ethics
MIBEH  HERE - HEEE

Customers Product quality

BP mEE

Community Contribution to cultural and

1T social development

0 71 XA Akt & 2
Environmental Policy and Management

The Group is committed to complying with all applicable environment
laws and regulations, protecting the environment, and managing the
impact of our operations on the environment through appropriate
environmental strategies, including but not limited to by reducing energy
consumption and pollutant discharge, responsibly using natural
resources, and improving waste management. The Group has always
been making efforts to reduce the consumption of natural resources and
the generation of waste. The Group’s operations do not create any air
pollutant or greenhouse gas emissions directly or generate any hazardous
or non-hazardous waste and its mainly source of energy consumption is
electricity. The Group has striven to reduce the direct and indirect impact
of its operations on the environment by reducing unnecessary energy
consumption in its offices and adopting environmentally friendly policies.
In 2016, the Group strictly complied with all environmental laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong and was not subject to any
environmental regulatory sanction.

Investors meeting, annual general
meeting, financial reports and ESG report

wEEEgR  FEREAS UBHmER
ESG#H &

Employee complaint mechanism,
whistleblowing policy, training feedback

RERFEE - WEIBRECK - BIIRE

Compliance with laws and regulahons,
positive response to government policies,
continuous communication with relevant
government departments

BPAEER  BREBRINRE - HEH
BASFISEER

Company website, feedback from
front line employees

RREMIL - ATARE B R EE

Support of charity organizations in relevant
fields
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Promotion of Environmental Awareness

It is the Group’s policy to reduce the generation of waste and use
electricity economically. To raise our employees’ environmental
awareness, we have pasted environmental stickers and posters on the
walls of our offices. The Group also encourages waste recycling and
management. Measures include, for example, pasting “Print or Copy on
Both Sides” signs on each duplicator or printer, and placing a
wastepaper basket by each duplicator or printer to facilitate recycling.
Meanwhile, the Group will promote paperless office and document
digitalization. We transfer old duplicators together with unused toner
cartridges to suppliers to avoid causing waste. The Group has taken
different methods to reduce electricity consumption of its offices. For
example, all air-conditioners are set within the 25°C-27°C range to
ensure that employees work in a comfortable and eco-friendly
environment. Electrical appliances are turned off when not in use to save
energy and electricity.

We encourage employees to use eco-friendlier means of transportation.
When making business decisions, we consider the possible impact on
the environment. In addition, we educate employees at all levels on
environmentalism and provide training when necessary.

EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT
Employment Policy and Labour Standards

The Group is committed to creating an anti-discrimination and anti-
harassment workplace for employees. We strictly comply with all
applicable labour laws/regulations and provide equal opportunity for
applicants and employees regardless of their age, race, religion, disability,
gender, sexual orientation, marital status, social stratum or political
background. The Group will investigate into any complaints of
discrimination or harassment and take necessary actions. Anti-
discrimination is an important part of our recruitment, promotion and
dismissal processes.

The Group has covered all employees with the applicable retirement
scheme according to relevant laws/regulations and provides them with
other benefits including medical benefits. The Group’s management
reviews the Group’s internal management systems on a regular basis and
updates its employee compensation and benefit policies according to
changes in labour laws. The Group will continue to strengthen its HR
management strategy and provide its employees with career
development opportunities, appropriate incentives and a good working
environment.

46 ANNUAL REPORT 2016
TR

EEIR R S

AEEEHERVRE HHORE - RTRESET
HIRBRENER - ROERRERRBERR
HHRARORE AR MG 3R o AR B IR B E 1T B UM BE
YIEIE o PN - AR EDANIT BN EoRRE B B
EMTEIMRR  ARR WA RES 8B I
FTENH#E S 38 AT (B IR o RS2 IR S HEFT A RN
MHEBFE - HRETEI - HFIS T FIERE
RAMENa —EEHER  WBPRE - A%
B-—BERBTRNITEARBDBEARES - f
W B ERAMREEDE27TEHENET
DAREOR B THEFEARERAORBEP TE: RTH
HRRINESN  ERRBET LR

BPIE B B TilR i EEIRRABRERE
BRAITR - EEHEBRER - RANBER
ZEEAGEHRNRETE - I HPHESR
MITEABURERGTAITE  WHEMSERRHE

Al o
ETER
ERER R & TER

AEEFIRRBTAE - ARBKENREEDN
THERZ - BRMBERETERNS BHREE
B/RE FRFEANMBEINZETERER
g MAWESFER Bk T 24EAK &
B BRSO - MR ERBUAE R
AEBKRAEMABAREARMER B X
BBERRTE - RERBERMETEE &7
MR —EEZRARE

AREECRBERME TRIEZE RIS
3 BRofREELEN NBRRES K
SEEEETHEEANERSE  RESTE
B (A2 B B AR MIBOR » AR B SR E IR TR
PMANERNERBE - SETRHBEIRY
B EE MBS R RO TERSE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - g NRERHE

The Group respects human rights and the personal freedoms of its
employees. In 2016, the Group strictly complied with employment laws/
regulations of the PRC and Hong Kong and did not use any child labour
or forced labour. During the year, a former employee of the Company
filed a claim for compensation with the Hong Kong Labour Tribunal
against the Company and its subsidiary Hong Kong Wan Li Enterprise
Company Limited. As of the report date, the dispute between the former
employee and the Group is still pending for outcome. For details, please
refer to the “Contingent Liabilities” section on page 124 to 125 of this
Annual Report.

Health and Safety

The Group cares for its employees regarding their health and benefits
and provides them with customized insurance plans to enhance their
social security and reduce their medical costs. All subsidiaries of the
Group review their workplace and safety policies on a regular basis to
ensure the full compliance of their everyday operations with all applicable
laws. All industrial accidents are required to be reported to the Group and
subject to evaluation on a case-by-case basis according to the Group’s
internal processes. The Group briefs all new employees on occupational
health and safety policy at induction, provides specialized safety training
for specific departments and positions, and communicates the latest
occupational safety information on a regular basis. The Group did not
experience any industrial accident in 2016.

Development and Training

In order to promote employees’ career development and solidify the
foundation of the Group’s sustainable development, we encourage
employees to take part in relevant courses offered by professional
organizations and, through these courses, improve their professional
knowledge, skills, techniques and competitiveness and broaden their
horizons. In order to promote self-improvement, the Group also provides
qualified employees with cash subsidy or other incentives to acquire
relevant job-related knowledge and enhance their performance. In
addition, we invite various professional organizations on a regular basis to
provide well-targeted training and inform the employees of relevant legal
and regulatory information, product information and industry development
information.
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LAWFUL OPERATION
Supply Chain Management

For its procurement, the Group evaluates supplier candidates not only in
terms of their service performance and product quality, but also taking
into account their environmental certifications. It also reviews its existing
suppliers from time to time to ensure its supply chain stability.

Privacy Protection

The Group protects the confidentiality of personal information and
customer privacy and complies with the Personal Data (PRIVACY)
Ordinance (Chapter 486). We have formulated detailed codes of conduct
for operation and service to protect customer privacy. In this regard, the
Group requires its employees to comprehensively comply with
instructions on customer data treatment and prohibits them from
copying, communicating or disclosing confidential information without
authorization to reduce the risk of information leakage.

Product Responsibility

The Group’s products and services comply with all applicable laws/
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
with no violation during the year. The Group has a comprehensive system
in place to address customer requests and complaints and provide after-
sales services. The Company responds to customer complaints in a
timely way by solving relevant issues through internal investigation and
getting back to the affected customers about the results of investigation.
In addition, the Management will review complaints, discuss remedial
measures and, where necessary, adjust internal control and management
systems or facilities to avoid subsequent occurrence of the same issues.

Anti-corruption

The Group complies with all applicable anti-corruption laws/regulations
and subjects all its employees to its internal code of conduct, requiring
them to behave ethically, do things honestly, treat others fairly, respect
diversity, comply with all laws, accept accountability and communicate
openly. The Group encourages employees, customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders to pay attention to and report on any misconduct
relating to the Group. In 2016, the Group did not receive any report
regarding any bribery or corruption case relating to the Group.
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Care for Community

The Group is committed to supporting community development in the
areas where it operates and having a positive influence on the local
communities. We support community engagement, contribute to cultural
and social development, and encourage our employees to get involved in
volunteer services and community activities to promote cultural diversity
and community values.
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KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

oz & 3 6P F A5 PRA IR 8

Tel &35 (852)2314 7999

Fax 1% #:(852) 2110 9498

E-mail & F#(45: info@ktccpa.com.hk

Room 701, 7/F., New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY
COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhejiang
RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 57 to 130, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN 2B EE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB2,624,000 during the year ended 31 December 2016 and, as of that
date, the Group current liabilities exceeded its total assets by
approximately RMB51,078,000. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 3, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

RENER

ABEC ZREB M AGRMNTEEX
BRN([FBEZEN)EITEZ T - BPIBZ
SREANAENE FEARERBE R B EZE A M
BRRAENEE—HhE— S - RIEFE
SRR AGRNBESENBESTAI(TFRD -
PBZR BEE  YEREITTRIFOEMBE
BREM - ARBEEE - ARBETTESHE
BT RN E R ZHMNER B RIZ
PHRERE -

AREFRESENERTREL

BIVEERGRATHRAMASIEL - EEER
BHE_Z—A"F+_A=1+—"BLFEELEEH
BHAREE26240007T 1 EEEEHEZZH
NRBAEESRESEENARES1,078,000
T RSN ERM F IS E M BEIBERE
EATHPRAERAGEY BEEBELCENRE

R E AR E - |MME R WM ULLIELEET -

REEXRER

RREZSAERBRMNOBEHE - HAHME
HAEVBHRRNBRRAEENFIE - REFR
EERMBZERGEVBTRR IO AR RRE
TTRIEH) - RPITEHZREFEREHEBOESR
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Key audit matters

MRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EANERNMEEARELER

Valuation of trade receivables

EWE SRR MEE

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements

ZRAREMBHRRME 22

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the use of judgment and estimates
in assessing the recoverability of trade receivables.

BMRREKEZRAEERBREXEIE  RAH
FHEEY B B AR TGRS A B B A e B R Ak 5T R

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the
management considers the credit history including
default or delay in payments, settlement records,
subsequent settlements and aging analysis of the trade
receivables.

RETFRWE HRFTBER - EREeZREELHK -
BRI - SEEE AREERERE
SRR BRI -

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is approximately RMB5,705,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB445,000).

RIZE-—RF+ZA=+—RB RBREZFERZER
BERK AR 5,705,000 7T (£ 0 49 A R ¥ 445,000 7T
BIRIREE)

Details of the trade receivables are set out in Note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

JEWE 5 IR K 2 FEBHN R A M s BaR M s 22
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Our procedures in relation to valuation on trade receivables
included:

BPEREKE SRR GEENEFEERHE

° Obtaining an understanding of how allowance for doubtful
debts is estimated by the management;
o THRERENMMEFRIRES

° Reviewing the aging analysis of the trade receivables
throughout the year to understand the settlement patterns
by the customers;

o ERRURBZIRINEEFEZREINT  UTBREP
WEERI

° Testing the aging analysis of the trade receivables, on a
sample basis, to the source documents; and
o HBRAIEYEZRFERRSTORBM &

° Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of trade
receivables with reference to the credit history including
default or delay in payments, settlement records,
subsequent settlements and aging analysis of each
individual customer.

e ZEFRERTFEFBEHRJERNR - EHELH -
BEERRRDITHEERE - T EKE SR
MQEEEZQE o
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Key audit matters

BREEREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BERNERNMEERREREE

Contingent liabilities

RREE

Refer to Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements

2GRS MBHRERM T34

Due to the level of judgement relating to recognition,
valuation and presentation of provisions and contingent
liabilities, this is considered to be a key audit matter.
ENEBHELIAAENER  REREIEBO
ErERE - SRR RRREREE -

The assessment of the existence of the present legal or
constructive obligation, analysis of the probability of the
related payment and analysis of a reliable estimate,
requires management’s judgement to ensure
appropriate accounting or disclosures.
AERBEREXEEERBEAETE  2MABBRNRD
ATRE M R o AT AT SRR RE IR AR L H B - ARERIE
HEE RS BRIE S IREE -

As of 31 December 2016 the Group had contingent
liabilities that arising from a claim from a former
employee for approximately HK$2,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB2,340,000) and a provisions for
claim of approximately RMB86,000 was recognised
during the year. Details of contingent liabilities are set
out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-—RE+_A=+—0  ESEFE-ZAEE
MREELESAREEL2,600,000FT(FHEROAR
#2,340,0007T ) FNEHARRBEREBNARE
86,0007T ° KA RE 2 FBEHNERA M HREMTES4 -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon (“Other Information”).

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to the provision of claim included:

BMABRERGNRFEEEHE

Reviewing judgements made by the Court;

AR R ROFIR ¢

Discussing significant litigation and claims with the
Group’s management and assessing their processes to
identify new possible obligations and change in existing
obligations for compliance with group policy:

B SEEERENmEANFARRE R EER
AFHAIREEERNRELR A T ETERBRRMAESR
BEEHBES

Performing legal search to ensure the completeness of
litigation and claims.
EITERAFTARRF R R REE MR -

Obtaining and reviewing letters from the Group’s
external legal advisors regarding the likely outcome and
magnitude of and exposure to the relevant litigation and
claims;

ERLEN S£EINEIZBEHAREBFALR
BRI BE 45 SR R A2 15 DA I P HE [ B 915 BR

Reviewing minutes of board meetings; and

EHEFEGRCE M

Assessing the appropriateness of presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
FHE A BEREANEI R EENEE T -

BERREFAHEMENAE - HWENBEF

BAMEOHER  ETREGFE P BIHRE LA
UL T HR BN SRE ([HMER -

AT SRR RN BRAR
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chow Yiu Wah Joseph

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number: PO4686
Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ire B M A E

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XE+-_B=+—HItFE

2016 2015
—E—XRF —ZET—AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

et AR®TR ARETT

Revenue Uk 9 14,337 56,427
Cost of sales SHE KA (12,648) (54,477)
Gross profit ER 1,689 1,950
Other income HAw g A 9 5 512
Gain on deregistration of —FEIF B A R BB B R A

a subsidiary 40 - 627
Gain on disposal of investment properties H &% &Y% RIENAE

and prepaid lease payment TR MR 11 2,343 -
Reversal of trade payables BEIENE SRR = 850
Waiver of other payables, accruals and  ZFAREhEN R - FESTEH

receipt in advances G = 5,938
Administrative expenses THE M (6,663) (5,353)
(Loss) profit before taxation FRBLAT (B518) R F 12 (2,626) 4,524
Income tax credit FrigBii e 13 2 -
(Loss) profit for the year FREE) &=F (2,624) 4,524
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

= AEE 2L Pa N4
e Bm MEMEEmR S
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—X"E+-_A=+—HILEFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hitax AR¥T T ARBFT
Other comprehensive income HibZmEKA
Items that may be reclassified HgEHsEZEm2HEE !
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEENER Z/
translation of foreign operations (76) 1)
Total other comprehensive income FREMEEWALTE
for the year (76) (21)
Total comprehensive income FRE2AEBAEEE
for the year (2,700) 4,508
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: Ll T~ A =BG ER (BE)EF :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N (2,624) 4,524
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 - -
(2,624) 4,524
Total comprehensive income MFATEAZEEBA
attributable to: Wz
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZZ =N (2,700) 4,503
Non-controlling interests FEPE R == - -
(2,700) 4,503
(Loss) earnings per share R (&EE)BF
(RMB’ cents) (ANRHD) 17
Basic YN (0.52) 0.90
Diluted e N/A RER N/A 38 A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“ra MR

At 31 Deoember 2016
RZE—RE+ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—nE —hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARET T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Plant and equipment = KR 18 91 159
Investment properties B 19 - 979
Prepaid lease payment TR HERIA 20 - 3,873
91 5,011
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories EN | 21 2,159 2,387
Prepaid lease payment B EERE 20 - 242
Trade receivables EWE%% 22 5,705 1,285
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - Zek
other receivables Hmmu&za% 23 46 336
Tax recoverable Al U B R TR = 36
Paid in advances SERBEENE/SE 4,451 5,314
Pledged bank deposits BRI TFK 24 102 95
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 25 2,834 1,373
15,297 11,068
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade payables FEE SRR 26 4,367 2,399
Other payables and accruals Hip IR N EE 27 2,471 1,770
Receipt in advances TEMRIR 4,571 4117
Amount due to a former director JEN—ZAIESIE 28 11,206 11,073
Amount due to a major shareholder R —REEREHIA 29 2,000 -
Amount due to a former shareholder TEN —ZBIIRE T8 29 31,191 29,658
Dividends payables FEAT AR B, 30 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings EMEE 31 6,220 11,000
66,466 64,457
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBAEFE (51,169) (53,389)
NET LIABILITIES FEE (51,078) (48,378)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR

At 31 Deoember 2016
RZZE—R"F+=A=+—H

2016 2015
—AE —RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hitax AR¥T T ARBF T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E

Share capital f& 7 32 50,000 50,000
Reserves ] (101,078) (98,378)

Equity attributable to owners RAREE ANELER
of the Company (51,078) (48,378)
Non-controlling interests SRR T - -
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY =N (51,078) (48,378)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 130 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2017 and

are signed on its behalf by:

He Keng
A8
Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

,A_ﬂ/_\ == N\ 7/ ,2.}-5,%
,ZR/T\m ﬁﬁx@]%

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XE+-_B=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADAEEAERS
Statutory Non-
Share Capital Other surplus  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
EER
RA& BRGRE Hitifkfe Bake E iR RitER Mt FERER a5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARET:R
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii
(GiED) (PzEin) (BtEiin)
At 1 January 2015 RZF-n§¥—A-H 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 34 (424,985) (52,881) 663 (52,248)
Total comprehensive FREABNER
income for the year - - - - 21) 4,524 4,503 - 4,503
Eliminated on deregistration —FEIMB R RRE
of a subsidiary (Note 40) B (M 40) - - - - - - - (633) (633)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-1E
+-A=1t—H 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 13 (420,461) (48,378) - (48,378)
Total comprehensive income FRZANNESR
for the year - - - - (76) (2,624) (2,700) - (2,700)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE
+=A=t+-A 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 (63) (423,085) (51,078) - (51,078)
Notes: M :
(0] CAPITAL RESERVE 0] ARG

()

()

Capital reserve includes the share premium arising from the issuance of H shares after
deduction of the respective share issuance costs of the Company.

OTHER RESERVE

Other reserve represents the waiver of the amounts due to a former major shareholder
upon change in shareholding in the Company.

STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) require the appropriation of 10% of their profit
after income tax determined under the PRC accounting standards each year to the
statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
According to the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association, under normal
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of the Company’s production and
operation. For the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered share
capital.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

(i)

(iii)

ERREREEARABITHREENEMEE (SHEK
AR BITRA) -

Hitf#

HEiEEER AR EES R REN — B L2
R °

EERBAES

ARBREFEREARKME ([ E ) KZAKHE QR
MRRERAAURE  SFEAMRETESHERGFE
MBRFEREETET 10 BNEERBRAES  HE
EERBABSEREDFEMBRARE0% B IE - REAR
ARMARERBURE  E—RELT  EEBHA
EeERRERHEEE  BRBARBERAQRBMNEE
REE R EERBABEETRAMS  EAERH
RIES BB E DR EMBAE 25% °

61
AT SRR RN BRAR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\/T\ Eﬁi/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—ZT—RE+-_A=+—HILEE
2016 2015
—AE —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
(Loss) profit before taxation B Al (E548) m A (2,626) 4,524
Adjustments for: ERTYIEERE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment B HTENHE R 121 242
Bank interest income RITHI B UA ) (4)
Depreciation of plant and equipment R K iR I E 39 47
Depreciation of investment properties KREYENE 29 58
Gain on disposal of investment properties and &R &Y KB HEE FIBER WS
prepaid lease payment (2,343)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary —HNE A RBEEE RIS - (627)
Impairment loss of trade and other FEW B 5 BR 3k I E At FE U AR 5 %
receivables and paid in advance BN RIER R ERE 445 136
Reversal of trade payables B O ENE SRR = (850)
Waiver of other payables, accruals and \%Eﬁﬁf ERTERN
receipt in advances FEETE A R TEWGIE = (5,938)
Provision for claim /%15@1% 86 -
Written off of plant and equipment MSE R & 2 29 2
Operating cash flows before movements ®ESLEBAINLERSRE
in working capital (4,223) (2,410)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA () 227 (62)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 R 5k (38 hn) ik > (5,069) 4,765
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, TBRFIAE -« e REMEUERR
deposits and other receivables R (1) 281 (137)
Decrease (increase) in paid in advances BN RIER A (3 h0) 1,341 (4,720)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables JEHE SR FAE I (G 4) 2,246 (2,823)
Decrease (increase) in other payables and HiEMNERRETERR A ()
accruals 614 (980)
Increase in receipt in advances TEUFRIEIE hI - 2,084
Cash used in operations REEBFMARS (4,583) (4,283)
Income tax refunded RIBFTISH 38 -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBAREFEE
ACTIVITIES (4,545) (4,283)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\/T\ Eﬁi/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HEZZ-—R"F+_A=t—HIFE
2016 2015
—~E —HRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETER
Purchase of plant and equipment HEME MR = @7)
Net proceed from disposal of investment HEREYHENIENEERIEN
properties and prepaid lease payment FriSsRIE 58 7,287 -
Increase in pledged bank deposits EHERIRITFFIE 0 = (99)
Interest received BUF B 3 4
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) ®E&ZEFRE(FTA)RESFEHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 7,290 (118)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬂﬁfa‘iﬂ
Repayments of other borrowings EEHMES (6,300) -
Advance from a former director XE %mJ%%E’U@%}( - 10,319
Advance from a major shareholder KE—BEEREHR 2,000 -
Advance from (repayments to) RE—ZRATRR A2 %’(/ =85
a former shareholder IS 1,533 (8,605)
Other borrowings raised EEEMEE 1,520 -
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM ®i& 58 (FrH) Fri8 R &35
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,247) 1,714
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReRASEEBEREMORD) B8
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,498 (2,687)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATTHE REINHRERREZEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,373 4,096
Effect of foreign exchanges rate changes P kB Eh (37) (36)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE RERANBEERBEEEEHR
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash BEVERITAE A IR & 2,834 1,373
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1.

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited
(the “Company”) is a joint stock limited liability company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“BRMB”). Other than the subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong
whose functional currency is United States Dollar (“USD”), the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) is RMB.

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture and
sale of intelligent controller systems for consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and the assembly of mobile phones in the
PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z-—RE+T-_A=1T—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Standards and amendments effective for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2016 adopted by the Group but have no
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure Initiative
Property, Plant and Equipment —
Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
Separate Financial Statements —
Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Intangible Assets —
Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Amortisation
Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation
Exception

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 16 (Amendment)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKAS 38 (Amendment)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Joint Arrangements —
Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interest in Joint Operation

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2012-2014 Cycle

2.

FER ] RAMERT B R M BRERE

RI(TEEMB®RE

REBEMMERE —F—
BEHAEELEA

HZERI RAERT A

EROHENE 15 (18

BRGEF 165
CHES)

BRGENE 7S
CHES)

BRGERF 3B
CHES)

BRMBREENE 0%
BEMBREEAE 125
REBEGFERE 285

CHES)

BAMBRELERE 1R

CHES)

BAMBREERE 145

%’u*\l

T——FEr-F
R 7 FEUCE

2R

NE—A— Eﬁ_éli

MBRRREEATE

AIR) BEHE

nE - BERRE -
ERURBNNE
&
BUBBHE —
BUMBERAN
W
BIEE -
ERIEAN
Bink
BARE:
ERAHORIME

—OFRRMZ EBARH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

The following new standards and amendments have been issued
but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
which the Group has not early adopted:

HKAS 7 (Amendment)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendment)

HKFRS 16

Notes:

66

FS N T

Apart from the above, a number of annual improvements and minor
amendments to HKFRS have also been issued by the HKICPA but

Disclosure Initiative — Statement
of Cash Flows'

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses'

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments 2

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Leases®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

they are not yet effective for the accounting period ended 31
December 2016 and have not been adopted in these consolidated

financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE—T—

RNE+ZRA=+—BItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

A final version of HKFRS 9 (that includes classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, impairment
and general hedge accounting) was issued in 2014.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

An expected loss model (rather than an incurred loss model)
has been adopted by HKFRS 9.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for
hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) will assess the
impact of the application of HKFRS 9. For the moment, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of the
application of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.

2.

FERAHIREETEBMBRESE
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—RNETA=t—BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarification to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
consideration, as well as licensing application guidance.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—XE+-_B=+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. It distinguishes leases and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Subject to limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value
assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees. However, the standard does not significantly
change the accounting of lessors.

Application of HKFRS 16 will result in the Group’s recognition of
right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities in respect of many
of the Group’s lease arrangements. These assets and liabilities are
currently not required to be recognised but certain relevant
information is disclosed as commitments in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 16 in the future will unlikely have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Other than disclosed above, the Directors anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statements of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable individual HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CQO”). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (“GEM Listing
Rules”).

Basis of preparation

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss for the year of
approximately RMB2,624,000. At 31 December 2016, the Group
had net current liabilities of approximately RMB51,169,000 and
capital deficiency of approximately RMB51,078,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liability in the normal course of business.
Nevertheless, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for the next twelve months from the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements on the basis
that:

(i) The Directors will strengthen to implement measures aiming
of improving the working capital and cash flows of the Group
including closely monitoring the general administrative
expenses and operating costs;

(i)  a major shareholder of the Company confirms to provide
adequate financial support to the Group as is necessary to
ensure its continuing operation for a period at least twelve
months from the date of this report;

(i)  to raise funds by way of issuing additional equity or debt
securities; and

(iv)  to negotiate with certain bankers to obtain additional banking
facilities, if necessary.
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NFETZRA=T—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Basis of preparation — Continued

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets as current assets.
The effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
or value in use in HKAS 36.
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—RNFTZA=T—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Basis of preparation — Continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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NFETZRA=T—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Basis of consolidation — Continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

statement of financial position at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods and scrap materials are recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Rental income
The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from

operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.
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Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Leasing — Continued
Leasehold land and buildings — Continued

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributable to non-controlling interest as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Borrowing costs — Continued

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
TR

EXEHEE - &

BE — &
FEAHE

BEERARGEVBHRRANEERBER
T8 B 5T B R RIS M T R IR A =
BEER - BEERBAE —RIZAB RN

ERZHER EXHBEE—RIME
FEFNTLE B Z R E T pe B LA SH B ER B

F T UARER,

RENB AR R G ZREARE
RSB IABE - AN B T2 5
EZHEMBEEEBAREAIRLSR ISR
B ZFARIN - BZFRE AR 2 A
MERERMELZRIEREEEENA
EETHERTENATNEREREEL
i Ba B IBRT I AJ L6 2R AT LA SR [l B HE AR o

BEEFRIARENRIENS RS HRIED
R WA BRI AL R B AR T A A
Y el 2 ER kBl D B ERBR TEL M

BXERBEENBENRBHEANEE
BEXEREEHM2RE  YRIERS
%ﬁiEaﬁ@EﬁkﬁiE?ﬁ@Zﬁ%(&ﬁif)

HE

ELRARABREENTERBRDIEAS
EEHARRERRG R @K EFHEER
BEMNREEMEENHIRERR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o

& BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE—T—

3.

NFETZRA=T—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation — Continued

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the category; loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivable where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables
and other receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
TR

EXEHEE - &
TRTH — &
EHMEERE — &

RRBERAIRZeREENS - ©F
REEBEESEEZEEZRAERRS
BEERABENEHRZMFAARARES
REZREMZ ZRETE -

RERASIRzEBMEET = - MEBE
CHEEERTMEARRSREERRT
MBEHEFR 2 EFRRASRERE
Al ZRE - RBREBRTENER
HIRI AL (R T X&) -

HMESREEMS  eRMEECKREE
HERRBEEERY  WEWKESHER R
EfhE U AR KR SN - EBRTEE Th B e A
BERB ML - WEKE SRR EAM
FEUS IR SR AR A RN E - R B ER B
gy o ﬁﬁ\@W@L{EEW%Z*”IE?ﬂ\ﬁéﬁ
AN - BERECEOEZHNIES
NHERR ©

RERBERAHEZEREEMNS @ WR
ERE - REBBESERD - & D
ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%%&ﬁiZ%ﬁﬁ
B - RISEATHER 2 RER B E B8 R
@*ﬁ%&é%%@ﬁ@E%Z%E@W
SHRBEY EERREIBRTEE 2%
R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o

& BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z-—RE+T-_A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued 3.

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables,
amount due to a former director/a major shareholder/former
shareholder, dividends payables and other borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate), a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contributions.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise of cash on hand and at banks with a maturity of
three months or less. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits as defined above.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that
is preparing its financial statements (“reporting entity”).

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to a reporting entity if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(i) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.

(b)  An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the
same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an
entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting
entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the reporting entity.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (g)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting
entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimation (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the Group accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessments of the going concern assumptions involve making
judgement by the Directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The Directors consider that the Group has the ability to
continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively
may cast significant doubt about the going concern assumptions
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainly at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued

Depreciation of plant and equipment and investment
properties and amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Plant and equipment and investment properties are depreciated
and prepaid lease payment is amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful lives and
residual values involve management’s estimation. The Group
assesses annually the residual value and the useful life of the plant
and equipment, investment properties and prepaid lease payment
and if the expectation differs from the original estimate, such
difference may impact the depreciation/amortisation in the year and
the estimate will be changed in the future period.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the
customers’ current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review
of their current credit information. The Group continuously monitors
collections and payments from its customers and maintains a
provision for estimated credit losses have historically been within
the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to monitor
the collections from customers and maintain an appropriate level of
estimated credit losses. An impairment loss of approximately
RMB445,000 (2015: RMB42,000) was recognised for the year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued
Allowance for inventories

The Directors review an aging analysis at the end of each reporting
period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slowing-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
Directors estimate the net realisable value for finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and make allowance for
obsoletes items. No impairment loss was recognised for the year
(2015: Nil).

Provision for claim

During the current and prior years, the Group had been involved in
a dispute (Note 34). The Directors determine the provision for claim
based on their best estimates according to their understanding of
legal advice. Where the final outcome of the claim and negotiation
with the respective party is different from the estimation made by
the directors, such difference will impact the provision for claims in
the year in which such determination is finalised. A provision for
claim of approximately RMB86,000 was made for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through optimisation of the debt and equity

balance.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

EXERER

AEFEEEBEEEANABERASEETH
EREFECEER  ANERELED
MigEm 2 BRI EkeE - BREFREAK
[B]3F o

RBEHRNERBELRNT ¢

2016 2015
—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Debts (Note (i)
Bank balances and cash

Net debt

Capital deficiency (Note (ii))

Net debt to equity ratio

Notes:

[0] Debts comprise amount due to a former director/a major shareholder/a former

shareholder and other borrowings.

(i) Capital deficiency includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the

Company.

* As the Group had a net deficiency in capital at 31 December 2016 and 2015,
the Group’s gearing ratio as at that date were not applicable. The directors of
the Company have given careful consideration on the measures currently
undertaken in respect of the Group’s liquidity position. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due based on the Group’s working capital sufficiency

plans.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

Categories of financial instruments

HEEREE
ERMITAER
2016 2015
—EB-RF —F-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivables B EUER TR

(including bank balances and cash) (BIERITEHRERS)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RHERAYIRZ BB E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables, dividend
payable, amount due to a former director/a major shareholder/a
former shareholder and other borrowings are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and USD. The Group’s foreign
currency is mainly HKD. The Group has certain portion of the other
receivables, tax recoverable, bank balances and cash and other
payables that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency to which they relate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Currency risk — Continued

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

MEEREENEERBEK — &

U ES — &

TRINFAEERREMROEREER
BE(AEZ HRNERATIEER R AN
BHEHE) PIIBMEE R -

2016 2015

—E-XRF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREEF T

Assets BE 69 206
Liabilities afE (936) (442)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group do not expose any fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable rate bank balances. The Group considered that the
effect of the cash flow interest rate is minimal and no sensitivity
analysis to interest rate risk is presented.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Credit risk

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
the failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and other debtor at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 35% (2015: 33%)
and 63% (2015: 90%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and authorised banks in the PRC with high-credit
rating.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December 2016 as
its financial assets due within one year was less than its financial
liabilities due within one year. The Group had net current liabilities
of approximately RMB51,169,000 as at 31 December 2016. The
liquidity of the Group depends upon the positive cash flows
expected to be generated from the Group’s future operations and
successfully obtain new working capital in order to meet the
Group’s future working capital and financial requirements. Details of
which are set out in Note 3.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

7.

MEEREENEERBEK — &

FERE
R-B-RNER-_FT-AFT-_A=1+—

B AEERHFHREETEEMENE
RS ERERR HEBAEENIEE
B) DTRASEMBHIRRAILE CHERE
BEENREEMSIZ -

AEERSREMRBT S RUEE HERR
R E At PR W BR SR e AT UG B SR IR - AR R B

AR E R FRIERHE R SRR ERIE o B
BmE  EERR - ARENEERRE
RABEE

AEEBFEEREERR  BWRE SRR
MEE R EE5% (ZF — L E 33%) LA K&
63% (ZZT—FH4F : 90%) 7 B R EARNEH
BABRFPURAKRES °

HREF I HEEREEFARER TR

BEEFENRITRESEEFRNF
BERT AAKBEETHESHHELN
SAMR

=ER

RBEERER

HAREER —FRESENEREE IR
—FARIENEREE  BLEAEERRZ
T-RFTZA=t+—HEBRLABHESR
B NZE—A"F+ZA=1+—80 %
Emm@%@@%%%AE%m1wom
%ﬁk}ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬂziﬁflmi ’ J/\/{&EXWHX
REBESMBEAEENRREEES R
BIsHR K - BRFHBEERNIEES -

TRALRBEBENERBH - NEEE
TESRBBENRTAOIMER - &K
TREAREAREAX N &F B HIRR
TRABNAMARSREER - ZRE
EHERATHERE - WHERERZE
B E - ARMRBBIRBERENRZ
MR ghaREt ESH o
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7.

96

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.

AND POLICIES — Continued

MEEREENEERBEK — &

Liquidity tables REBEL K
Within 1 year
or on demand
and total
Carrying undiscounted
amounts cash flow
—FRFLERE
RARBEERH
REE HESHRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBTT
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-XRE+=-H=+—H
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost: REERRASBR 2 At SR A (A -
Trade payables ENEZER 4,367 4,367
Other payables EAth FE AT BR K 1,335 1,335
Amount due to a former director Bt —ZRIESIE 11,206 11,206
Amount due to a major shareholder B — R EEREHRE 2,000 2,000
Amount due to a former shareholder FERT— R AR R 5K IE 31,191 31,191
Dividends payables FERTAR B 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings HtEE 6,220 6,220
60,759 60,759
At 31 December 2015 R=-B—HF+=-A=+—H
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHER AR EtemaE
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRR 2,399 2,399
Other payables E b AR IR 1,183 1,183
Amount due to a former director B —RREERE 11,073 11,073
Amount due to a former shareholder FE — & BIAR R FIE 29,658 29,658
Dividends payables FERTAR B 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings HitgE 11,000 11,000
59,753 59,753
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8. FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices, respectively;

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivate instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;
and

the fair value if non-optional derivative instrument is calculated
using quoted prices where such prices are not available, the
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis
and the applicable curve for the duration of the instruments.
For option based derivative, the fair value is estimated using
option pricing model (for example, the Binomial model).

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values
due to their short-term maturities.

AT

CRMEENEBABZIATEEENT

ARBREGRRGHLNERRE ™
LEEzeMEERSREE D
BI2EZmBmEEREREREETE
RNHE

HiveRmEERSRAB(TRIENT
ATR) ZAFEDREEBRATE
EBRIZUERASTREN A AE
EREMERZZERMBUTAR
SEMEETE M

SERRIEOTAE T A2 ATET A BRE
HE RmmARE - AT RN
RRSREHT LT ASHHNZE
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

9.

98

—RNETA=t—BIEFE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to
outside customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income for the year
are as follows:

s R E AW A

Wik (TRARAREE 2 &) B RSB RS
REPHEE MmO W& E R FINRIT
R SRR HIRRAFER -

AEBOFER S REBBADFTOT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
TR

2016 2015
—"F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEF T
Revenue g
Sales of controller systems for consumer HEHBEEENETHRMN
electrical and electronic appliances and BRI RF RSN
income from sales of small electrical BEEHWA
appliances 14,337 56,427
14,337 56,427
Other income HAnug A
Bank interest income HRITHEMA 3 4
Government grants (Note i) BT Bh & (B EED) = 120
Rental income (Note ii) S WA (HFEEi) = 350
Sundry income B 2 38
5 512
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9. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME — Continued 9.

[0] No government grants received during the year ended 31 December 2016 for
postdoctoral researchers state-funded programme (2015: RMB120,000).

Wk HMBA — &

[0) REBE-_ZE—RE+_A=+—BILFEY
B TR R B R & B 1A B WERBU 4 B
& (ZT—RF : AR¥120,0007T) °

(ii) Rental income (ii) HEBA
2016 2015
—E—XF TE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Gross rental income from investment properties BREMERSBRA - 350
Less: outgoings (included in administrative expenses) A FEGEATRER) = (118)
Net rental income WA FRE - 232

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2 EBE K

Information reported to the Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segments performance focuses on the types of
goods delivered. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

a. Sales of controller systems for consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and income from sales of small
electrical appliances — wholesalers.

b.  Sales of controller systems for mobile phones and income
from sales and assembly of mobile phones — wholesalers.

MEZAIXZEERARE)ROIERS
Bt R RBFF A MRS 2 ERER RS
EREE - TERAEE A Z2HRDE
B UEBEEEFZEBERRENS 2L

EHER o

LHR  REFBMBHRELESH - K

SEZA2|MELEDEHINOT

a. fﬁ%/ﬁ% DE&%%%DDE’]T %‘J
B SHE N LB R — ﬁt?éf?éﬁ

b. HERBEFENSRGMEERK
BRBERNUA — #LEER -
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

100

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
consumer electrical and

electronic appliances and
income from sales of small

electrical appliances

HaEm — HEREEH

10. ZEER — &

Pl 6 E 3

EESFWOT -

REEIRA 2], R4

Enabgl oz s R

BE+=-A=+—HIFE

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales and
assembly of mobile phones

#HEH - HERDEF

Consolidated

RETHARNEHERS EHSRGERHEER
RESENHBENBA HRABBFNRA w"E
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-AE —T-hF ZB—RE —T-HF ZB-RE —T-0fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTET ARETT ARBTRE ARETT AR®BTRE ARETR
Revenue gk
— External sales — HIMEE 14,337 56,427 - - 14,337 56,427
Segment results DEPELE (1,012) (813) - - (1,012) (813)
Unallocated income Ko EEUA
Bank interest income RITFBUA 4
Government grant B & = 120
Rental income [iEEA PN - 350
Gain on deregistration of — 1P J88 A I EE
a subsidiary B Rk = 627
Gain on disposal of HEREMER
investment properties and TERNEEFRIEN G
prepaid lease payment 2,343 -
Waiver of other payables, b H A FEARER -
accruals and receipt in FETE A R IEWGRIE
advance = 5,938
Others Hh 36
Unallocated expenses AOBFX
Amortisation of prepaid lease BHENEERE
payment (121) (242)
Depreciation of investment REMENE
properties (29) (58)
Impairment loss recognised LE A FEU AR R
in respect of other receivables BB BRIERERR
and paid in advances RIEEE = 94)
Provision for claim RERE (86) -
Written off of plant and SRR R
equipment (29) @
Others Hi (3,697) (1,342)
(Loss) profit before taxation BB (548 s (2,626) 4,524
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

Segment revenues and results — Continued

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
results represent (loss)/profit incurred by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, bank interest income,
amortisation of prepaid lease payment, depreciation of investment
properties gain on disposal of investment properties and prepaid
lease payment and gain on deregistration of a subsidiary. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable segment:

At 31 December

10.

Wholesalers — sales of

controller systems for

consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and

income from sales of

small electrical appliances

HEEm — HEREEH

DEER — &
DR E R KA — &

,i«f.g’n\ﬁliﬁ"] ETHCR BN FE S PTIl 2 AR &
SRTERAER - D EMEEREESBESL
2 (B8R),a8H - YR RA RS RITH

RS - RATRIS MO - B RTERI AR E 58

BREMENE  HEREVWERENEE

IR W A N — P B A RIRBH B DR

Woas o WL E IR D B M RIBFF AR T

BEBRRELETERNE -
THEERERE
UTARAZRSHB2INAEBMEER
BENDT
R+=F=1+—H

Wholesalers — sales of

controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales
and assembly of
mobile phones

#HEH - HERDEF

Consolidated

REFARMWEHSERE EHBARRRHER

REENHBENBA HEBRREBFHBA w"E
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-—XRFE —ThF =B-—RF —T-HF =B-—RFE —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT ARBTRE ARETT AR¥ETRE ARKBTT
Segment assets DEPEE 12,452 9,481 - - 12,452 9,481
Unallocated corporate assets APBEEE 2,936 6,598
Total assets BEAE 15,388 16,079
Segment liabilities S s 11,323 8,286 = - 11,323 8,086
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao EXEE 55,143 56,171
Total liabilities FE=R 66,466 64,457
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued
Segment assets and liabilities — Continued

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
investment properties, prepaid lease payment, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash. Assets used jointly by
reportable segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual reportable segments; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
other borrowings, dividends payables and amount due to a
former director/a major shareholder/a former Shareholder.
Liabilities for which reportable segments are jointly liable are
allocated in proportion to segment assets.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December

FEDBERAD PAERM

Amounts included in the measure of

segment profit or loss or segment assets: BENTE:
Capital expenditure (Note) BERRY (M)
Depreciation of plant and equipment BERRETE

Impairment loss recognized in respect
of trade receivables

FEMERERRE B FE
BRORESE

Impairment loss recognised in respect

of other receivables and paid in advance
Gain on disposal of investment

properties and prepaid lease payment
—FMB A AR 2R
BEENEIER

Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary
Reversal of trade payables

Written off of plant and equipment

Walver of other payables, accruals and receipt

in advance HFE

Amounts regularly provided to the chief EHRETEEREAREET

operating decision maker but not included BERDHEFHENSE -
in the measure of segment profit or loss:

Amortisation of prepaid lease payment BHEEARERE

Bank interest income RTFSHRA

Depreciation of investment properties BEAMENE

Note:  Capital expenditure includes plant and equipment.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

FENE HEFERNRESE

HERANERENREFRN R

HeABEAES  EHEAR

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and
income from sales of
small electrical appliances
HEH - HEHEEER
ETARNEHERAR
HENMBENRA

10. D HER — &
Hhp &R
BEF—A=+—HAILEE

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales
and assembly of

mobile phones Unallocated Consolidated
H&H - HERBER
BHERARRHEER

RRRDEZHUA KB #a

2015 2015
—T-hF
RMB'000
AREFT

—T-hF
RMB'000
AREFT

(6,938)

M - BARX BEBERRE -
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

11.

Other segment information — Continued

Turnover from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as follows:

10. ZEER — &

Hibp &EHR — &

RIERFE  REEARERZXBFR
HIB10%WEFP ZEXBEHIIT ¢

2016 2015

—nE —ZT—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR AREETIT
Customer A! ZEA 2,596 N/A T3 A 2
Customer B! ZF B! 2,370 N/A 7@ A 2
Customer C' =ZEC! 1,745 N/A T3 A 2
Customer D' =B D! 1,473 N/A 7@ A 2

! Turnover from electronic appliances.
2 The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the total sale of
the Group in the respective year.

Geographical information

The Group’s business is primarily operated in the PRC. All of the
Group’s revenue is attributable to customers in Asia (mainly
including the PRC and Hong Kong).

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets by
geographical area in which the assets are located has not been
presented as they are substantially located in the PRC.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

During the year, the Group disposed of the prepaid lease payment
(Note 20), together with the investment properties (Note 19) erected
on such land in the PRC with carrying values of approximately
RMB3,994,000 and RMB950,000 respectively, at a total
consideration of approximately RMB7,500,000.

A gain on the disposal of approximately RMB2,343,000 has been
recognised for the year in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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12. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

RNE+ZRA=+—BItFE

12. BRBLAT (BE) EF

2016 2015
—E—REF —hRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
(Loss) profit before taxation has been arrived — Fr i Al (E518) s A2 15
at after charging: LATNIEE -
Staff costs, excluding chairman, directors’ and & LA (M EHEEF »
supervisors’ emoluments EENEEMS)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind ~ — ‘“% TEREMEDER 1,683 1,601
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions IRIRTEFI B3R 70 80
Total staff costs BB TR 1,753 1,681
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment BN REERE 121 242
Depreciation of plant and equipment B KR T E 39 47
Depreciation of investment properties WEYEINE 29 58
Total depreciation and amortisation ENEHEARE 189 347
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN N & 541 442
Cost of inventories recognised EER AR ERA
as an expense 12,648 54,477
Impairment loss on trade and other JEUE 5 BR N E A FEUR BR X
receivables 2 RREEE 445 85
Impairment loss on paid in advances BENTENFIER R EEE = 51
Research and development expenditure e LR - 154
Net foreign exchange losses HNE B 1BIFEE 29 -
Operating lease rentals for rented premises ~ HHEMEHRLHER S 183 453
Written off of plant and equipment MRS &R 29 2
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FTBHIER
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH
— Current year —REE - _
— Over-provision in previous years — BT FE BT 2 -
Income tax credit for the year FAMSHER 2 -

106

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the Company and the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has
been provided for the year ended 31 December 2016 as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in the PRC for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits
tax was made for the year ended 31 December 2016 as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for
that year.
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INCOME TAX CREDIT — Continued

13.

14.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FRr8HER —

FARSERELTEFEEE L EMEE
Wan R PrIBR B AT (BS1R) S A SRR T

2016 2015
—"E —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEF T
(Loss) profit before taxation BRFLAT (B518) B A (2,626) 4,524
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% RIE AR 25%
(2015: 25%) — R4 25%)tE
TR IR (657) 1,131
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries THARAEREZH
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARNHREEZRZNTE 84 61
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BTG & A IR S A
for tax purposes B e 477 353
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIERARBAIHIAEIEN
recognised T E 163 -
Tax effect of income not taxable P S BAERBUAR
for tax purposes Wi = (1,545)
Over-provision in previous years BEFEHERE 2 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR G ERBISEE
not recognised (67) -
Income tax credit for the year FRFEHER 2 -

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the

end of the reporting period.

14. RE

VERBE _FT-R"F+_A=+t—H1
FEXNHBEZRNEARSE (TR
FE) BMEHRAR  EZFIRM
ERAE e
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iR e SRR M 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-—F—<ET-A=t—AILEE

15. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN,
DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’

EIRK(BEXE EERES
<)

EMOLUMENTS)
2016 2015
—E-XNE —E-hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind e TENEMEYET 1,723 1,641
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RKREFIFH B 70 80
1,793 1,721

Hong Kong

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong employees. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees, Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group
companies (the “employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees
makes monthly contribution to the scheme a 5% of the employee’s
earning as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
The contributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HKD1,500 per month (2015: HKD1,500 per
month), a total contribution of approximately RMB23,000 (2015:
RMB21,000) was made by the Group in respect of this scheme.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Company
and those subsidiaries, which operated in the PRC, are required to
contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
employees. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees.
Under the state-sponsored retirement plan, the Group has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions, a total
contribution of approximately RMB47,000 (2015: RMB59,000) was
made by the Group in respect of this scheme.
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(== AN + 2
iRe BRI R
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F-—~E+-A=+-RILFE

16. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS

16. FE  -EEREEMS

Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments IE EEREEHS
oNSENTER(CE—RHF: +£)
FBEBEERER(ZT—RF: ZR)ES
HMSmT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seventeen (2015:
ten) chairman, directors and seven (2015: three) supervisors were
as follows:

BE_F-—ANF1+ZA=1+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December 2016

Name

#e

Executive directors HITES

Mr. He Keng (Chairman) WBEE(FE)(RZE—RE
(appointed on 13 December 2016) +ZA+=BEZ)

Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman) FEREE(MZF—RF
(resigned on 13 December 2016) +ZA+=REA)

Ms. Wu Shanhong R (RZF—RF
(appointed on 13 December 2016) tZAT=REZE)

Mr. Chen Weigiang

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Ding Cheng

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang

(resigned on 15 September 2016)
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong

(appointed on 7 June 2016 and

resigned on 13 December 2016)

Mr. Yu Nian Hua (resigned on 7 June 2016)

Non-executive directors
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zheng Xin

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan

(resigned on 13 December 2016)

BEAEE(R-B-RE
TZAT=BEEE)
THREE(RZS—RE
TZAT=BEEE)
TEREE(RZS—RE
AATRAEHE)
FEREEWZE—R
NACHERALIR-E—R
TZAT=RED)
REBRERZT—RE
~NATERT)

*UTES
ZRFRERZF-RF
TZATZHEE)
Pt (R-F-RF
TZATZHEE)
REARERZF-RF
TZATZHEE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-"ZT—XRFE+-_A=1+—HILFE

16. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

16. £F  ESEREEME — &

IFE - -ESNESEME - &

Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

— Continued

Name

e

Independent non-executive directors BIkBTES
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin ERREE(MZE—RF
(resigned on 7 June 2016) NATAEHE)

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong FEAEERZT-E
(appointed on 13 December 2016) TZATZREZM)
Mr. Zhang Tieyi BEREE(RZE—E
(appointed on 13 December 2016) TZATZREZM)
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai BEREE(RZT—1F

(resigned on 13 December 2016) T-A+ZRHEA)
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie Palidrs

Mr. Lu Song Qian
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and

BIRTEEMR-F-R
ARLREZARN-T-~F

resigned on 13 December 2016) TZAT=HE)
Supervisors Ex
Mrs. Mao Lihong EHfaT (RZE-RE
(resigned on 7 June 2016) ~ATAR)

Mr. Lu Guo Xun
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and

EEAAE(N-F—F
ARLRERERR-Z—F

resigned on 13 December 2016) TZAT=RE)

Mr. Shi Huanmiao REHEE(RZZ2-1F
(appointed on 13 December 2016) TZAT=AEZME)
Mr. Zhang Shenggen REREERZT-1F
(appointed on 13 December 2016) T-RT=REZf)
Mr. Chen Yuankang RIELERZT—F
(appointed on 13 December 2016) TZRT=REZf)
Mr. Li Yuhua FRERE(RZE-RE

(resigned on 13 December 2016) TZATZRHEHA)
Mrs. Shi Wei Na LEBLL(R-F-RF
(resigned on 13 December 2016) T-A+ZREA)
Total fst
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE—T—

NFETZRA=T—HIEFE
16. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’

EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

IE -EBRESEME - &

16. £F ESKESHE — &

— Continued
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_FE-—AF+-A=1+—HIEFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Name Fees inkind  contributions Total
e o 2 RIRTER
4 we REWER BE A fBET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®BTT AREBETT ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman) FEREE(FE) - - - -
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang TTEEEE - - - -
Mr. Yu Nian Hua REERE(RZE—1F
(appointed on 19 June 2015) NATNBEZRE) - - - -
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong REREE(RZZT—NHF
(resigned on 19 June 2015) NATABEE) - - - -
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping ZEFEE - - - -
Mr. Zheng Xin B E - - - -
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan EBIK ST - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin EXRAAE - - - -
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai BERERE A - - - -
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie Bl 40 - - 40
Supervisors Ex
Mrs. Mao Li Hong EFE L - - - -
Mr. Li Yuhua TRELE - - - -
Mrs. Shi Wei Na &3 b - - - -
Total HE 40 - - 40
Note: BiaE -
No directors and supervisors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the two BE-Z-RER-_T-—HE+-_A=1t—"HIIW

years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

BEFRETEEERESHNEXRBNREMNHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_Z

16.

17.

112

—RNETA=t—BIEFE

CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the Group, none
(2015: none) was a director of the Company whose emolument are
included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the
remaining five (2015: five) highest paid individuals were as follows:

16.

IFE ESREEME - &

SREEENE
AEBRESESHFMALH BiE(ZZ

—RHF:E)ARRES HMe#HIIN L
XEWEEERT - HBpAR(ZF—RF:
AR RESHFMALHEMSIT

2016 2015

—RE —hE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Salaries and other benefits in kind FehEMEYEF 798 778
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIFT R IR 31 32
829 810

Their emoluments were within the following band:

BEZMEHNTFIATEEA

Number of employees

Nil to RMB1,000,000

No emolument have been paid by the Group to the directors and
supervisors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

No bonuses paid or receivable which are discretionary or based on
the Company’s, the group’s or any member of the group’s
performance for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB2,624,000 (2015: profit of approximately RMB4,524,000)
divided by the weighted average number of 500,000,000 shares
(2015: 500,000,000 shares) in issue during the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
TR

T &= AR% 1,000,000 7T

17.

EBE A
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
5 5
HE_Z2—XR"EK-_ZTZ—HF+_-A
=+t HIMEFE  AEETEEAR

AIEENEFNAMRSH AL B
EERRSIMAKMAREE R 2 £
SAE R EE -

HE-_ZT—A"F+-_A=t+—HLUWEKF
- BEENENRBIEAKERETR
Al AEERAEEBETEAARNKIE
RIFEAT ©

R (518 2R

ERERBEBIIRERNA RS ABIGEF
REEHAREE2,624,0000(—Z—F4F -
B4 AR 4,524,000 70) Bk LAE A E 3
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fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z-—RE+T-_A=1T—HILFE

17. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE — Continued 17. BR(EH)EBAN — &
No diluted (loss) earnings per share have been presented for the HREZE T —R"Fr-_ZE—HF+ A
two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as there was no =+ HIEMBEFEXEETAIEAGES
diluted potential ordinary share outstanding for both years. SERRPER) LB AR - B b AR 2 51 5% M {E 5
ERSREE (B18) &F) -
18. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. MERRXE
Computer
and office
equipment
ELE)4
WAERME
RMB’000
AREFTT
cosT A
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—H 644
Additions NE 27
Written off i 8 @)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-HA=+—AH 668
Written off HisH (58)
At 31 December 2016 R-EBE—RE+=A=+—H 610
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitifE
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—H—A 463
Provided for the year FNEHE 47
Eliminated on written off T S B 88 (1)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—hF+=A=+—H 509
Provided for the year FNEE 39
Eliminated on written off T S B 088 (29)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRE+=-A=+—8 519
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRE+=-A=+—8 91
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=-A=+—H 159
Note: fI5E -

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives less their residual values at the following rates per annum:

Computer and office 20%
equipment

IR KRR B Ty AT AR R AR E
REWABRER T FERITE

BIKRWAETRE  20%
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REYHE
RMB’000
AREFT
COST R
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 RZE—RF—A—BEZZ—1F
+=—A=+—H 1,326
Disposals (Note 11) HE (1) (1,326)
At 31 December 2016 R-B—RE+=-A=+—H -
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT Z:iiTERBE
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HF—H 289
Provided for the year FAEE 58
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-—AF+-A=+—H 347
Provided for the year FARHE 29
Eliminated on disposals A S B S 8 (376)
At 31 December 2016 R=Z—A"E+=ZA=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES AR E E
At 31 December 2016 R=ZZ—A"E+=ZA=+—H -
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-—AF+-A=+—8H 979
Notes: BRE -
(@) The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over (a) iR A ETIRIE E QAL T F 4%
the period of the shorter of the term of the lease or at 4% per annum. (AR ERE)INE -
(b) The above investment properties are situated in the PRC under medium term (o) bt E Y MR A B IR IR A EAFE A0 5
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose and are measured B UEDES S BIEAARFAE - WA A
using the cost model. HAFE o
(© The investment properties represent the building situated in the PRC. Since the () WEMERVAPRENETF - AR ELLR

comparable market transactions are infrequent and the alternative reliable
estimates of fair value are not available, the Directors consider that the fair

value of the investment properties are not reliably determinable on a continuing

basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 201 6
HE-_Z-—RE+T-_A=1T—HILFE

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 20. FENHEERIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payment is land use right, which is REE ZBMNEERERERET BB
located in the PRC held under medium-term leases. FRA R R B+ e o
2016 2015
—NE B TS
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Analysed for reporting purpose as: BERMETHDN
Current asset MENEE = 242
Non-current asset EREEE - 3,873

= 4,115
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z-—RE+_A=+—HILFE

21.

22,

116

INVENTORIES 21. FE

2016 2015
—NE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Raw materials R AT # 1,294 2,035
Finished goods RIEK S 865 352
2,159 2,387

TRADE RECEIVABLES 22, EWEZRM
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTR ARETT

Trade receivables EUWE SRR
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B BEDRERTE

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to its trade
customers.

Impairment loss on trade receivables is recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade receivables directly.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade receivables
were individually determined to impair. The individually impaired
receivables are recognised based on the credit history of its
customers, such as financial difficulties or default in payments, and
current market conditions. Consequently, specific provision for
impairment was recognised.
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fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z-—RE+T-_A=1T—HILFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES — Continued

22,

FEWE SRR — &

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the NTREZEEZA2I|EKRE SRR (EH
invoice date, net of impairment losses recognised was as follows: B EERARERER) NIRRT

2016 2015

—"F —E-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETT

0-90 days 0Z90H 3,344 330

91-180 days 912180H 34 352

181-365 days 181 2365 H 1,833 546

Over 365 days 365 B A £ 494 57

5,705 1,285

The movements in impairment losses of trade receivables were as

I E SRR R EEBERNESH T

follows:
2016 2015
—NE —hHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
At 1 January ®n—H—H 42 -
Recognise during the year F TR 445 42
Written off during the year SN i (42) -
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 445 42
At 31 December 2016, included in the impairment loss are RZE—RF+ZA=+—H " BEHE

individually impaired trade receivables in the Group with an
aggregate balance of approximately RMB445,000 (2015:
RMB42,000) which are long outstanding and have been placed in
severe financial difficulties and the management assessed that the
recovery of the amounts is doubtful. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BE_T—

22,

23.

118

NFETZA=T—HIEFE
TRADE RECEIVABLES — Continued

The aging analysis of trade receivables which were past due but

22. BREZRMN — &

28 BB RORUE ) FE U E 5 B R i) AR e 0

not impaired are as follows: M
2016 2015
— X" TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
Within 90 days past due BHEAO AR 34 352
91 to 180 days past due #H91 =180 H 1,833 546
Over 180 days past due #EA180 H A F 494 57
2,361 955
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related FBHRHENEKE SE THA A
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history RS REAR -
of default.
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a EEEERRENEWKE SR EN % M

number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

REBHARFEELCENBIEP AR

BREBEER BEEBERA/ARFEANE
EEXUEEBARE  BNEERATEZH

Ym - B AEREARERE - AEE
WA F AT BT E M

23. AR - RERAEMEURIRK

2016 2015
— NI —HE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Prepayments TER OB 1 85
Deposits " 34 83
Other receivables H IR AR 3K 650 807
685 975
Less: Accumulated impairment losses W REHRVEEE (639) (639)
46 336
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—T—

23.

24,

25.

RNE+ZRA=+—BItFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES — Continued

The movements in impairment losses of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables were as follows:

23.

ANRE RERHEMERERER

- &

TS 1 TR A B 3K A
BHEBOT :

2016 2015

—E—XE —E—FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBFIT

At 1 January Rn—H—H 639 596
Recognise during the year FERER = 43
At 31 December wt+—_A=+—H 639 639
At 31 December 2016, included in the impairment loss are R-E—XNFE+-A=+—H REHSE

individually impaired prepayments, deposits and other receivables
is the Group with an aggregate balance of approximately
RMB639,000 (2015: RMB639,000) which are have been placed in
severe financial difficulties and the management assessed that the
recovery of the amounts as doubtful. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Pledged bank deposits represent cash at bank held by a subsidiary
pledged for issuance of a bank guarantee of USD14,500.

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.01% per
annum.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from 0.01% to
0.35% (2015: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate:

24,

25,

BB AT H ARE639,000T( =&
—h4F: AR¥G39,0007T) ZEEREE
HEREP B ERREN RS BE K
B EeREMEWREN BEEFTE
EIRBEARRE - ASBE W ERZEEHET
BEAEIRR o

BIRFRITER
EEMIRITFE B EETT 14,500 £ T HY IR
TERMEFNH —BHBRAREAEN
RITHE -

EHRMRITEFIR0.01 B8 B E F 7 K&t

B o

RITEBRERS
RITEBRIEFFNENTO001EZ035EZ
M(ZZ=—AF : N F0.01EZ0.35E 2 fH)

TSR R B o

RITRB LIRS BRI TIIFR (VAR Z 188
M E I B IAIMNE R EHE) ¢

2016 2015

—E—RE —FE-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARETT

HKD BT 60 162
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BE_Z

25.

26.

120

—RNFTZA=T—HIEFE
BANK BALANCES AND CASH — Continued

At 31 December 2016 approximately RMB2,760,000 was
denominated in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC (2015:
RMB842,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to conduct
foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

25.

26.

RITHEBRREE — &

RZZE—RF+_A=1+—8 HARE
2,760,000 TTAARKEEHE - WiF AR B
BIT(ZE—ARF : ARMS842,0007T) °
ARBTSERALRAHMEY %ﬁ
1R 45 7R B 19t Y HNGE B 2 R 191 K A FE
E&HE%@&E'$%@E&Eﬂﬁ%
EITINEEBHERITEARBLIE AH M
B o

B E 5 RN
BEmRNTYEESHAE0A -

RIBEHRREZRETNWENE SRR
B RRER DATFIRAAT -

2016 2015

—~E —hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREF T

0-90 days 0Z£90H 503 33
91-180 days 912180H 920 647
181-365 days 1812365 H 561 1,324
Over 365 days i@ 365 H 2,383 395
4,367 2,399

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made a
reversal for trade payables of RMBNil (2015: RMB850,000) which
was due to the amounts not being required to be settled for a long
period of time and based on the legal opinion from the Group’s
PRC legal advisors that there were no current or future liabilities
from these payables.
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For the year ended 31 December 201 6
HE-_Z-—RE+T-_A=1T—HILFE

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HittENRERRRESER
2016 2015
—RE —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Other payables E A ETER R 1,249 1,183

Accruals EsrE A 1,136 587

Provision for claim (Note 34(ii)) RIE A (M 5T 34i) 86 -

2,471 1,770

Included in other payables and accruals are the following amounts HiENERRESERBTE T IE (A

denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the HY HENE RN EE AN E e
entity to which they relate: ') :

2016 2015

—RE —ET-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

HKD BT 936 442
28. AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER DIRECTOR 28. Ef—RAIEERE

The amount is due to Mr. Zhu Guo An, and is unsecured, non- ZHEARNFBEELZEEZFHE - BER

interest bearing and has no fixed term of repayment. - BB REEFEENE -
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29.

30.

31.

122

AMOUNT DUE TO A MAJOR SHAREHOLDER/ 2. Ef—BEXERRE AIRRRE
FORMER SHAREHOLDER
2016 2015
—nE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Due to a major shareholder Bt — B E B RIE
Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent W TImR A REfZs A
Robot Co., Ltd. i BIR AR 2,000 -
Due to a former shareholder FERT — B RIAR R IR
Wanli Holding Group Co., Ltd. EREEREBERMHARA 31,191 29,658
33,191 29,658
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed HESIE AR e RERETENR -
term of repayment.
DIVIDENDS PAYABLES 30 EERE
The dividends payables represent the final dividend declared for FERIREER _SENFRBELEARDE
Promoter Shares in 2004 and shareholders of the Company in KB RHRE LA EERERARFIK
2005 which amounting to RMB940,000 and RMB3,500,000 TIREREAIR B - ﬂ\j;%/\ﬁqugm 000
respectively. 7T R AR # 3,500,000 7T °
OTHER BORROWINGS 31. Hitfg&
2016 2015
—RE —T—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

et AR®BTR ARBTT

Zhu Ji Ke Ying Metal Materials Limited* #ER&2E BV E AR A 7

Yuyao Wanli Mortgage Company* RETEERZEERA
Limited
Notes:

(i) Zhu Ji Ke Ying Metal Materials Limited is a related company of the major
shareholder, Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Robot Co., Ltd, and the amount is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.

(i) The loan was obtained from Yuyao Wanli Mortgage Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the former shareholder, Wanli Holding Group Company Limited
and the amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.

* For identification purpose only
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Regulatory Commission, all the shares of the Company, which were issued and
fully paid, being 37,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each,
were sub-divided into 370,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
RMBO0.10 each.

On 14 November 20083, the Company commenced the trading of the newly
issued 130,000,000 H shares of RMB0.10 each on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, including 117,000,000 H shares to institutional investors by way of
placement and 13,000,000 H shares for subscription by members of the public
in Hong Kong under the Public Offer at the Offer Price of HKDO.50 (equivalent
to approximately RMB69,550,000). Following the issue, the share capital and
capital reserve of the Company increased by approximately HKD12,150,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,000,000) and HKD52,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB56,550,000) respectively.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

HE-ZE—RE+-A=T—"HILFE
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B
Number of
shares Amount
BRGOEA Kok
000 RMB’000
TFix AREEF T
Authorised, issued and fully paid: VETE C BETRAR ¢
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—HFE—-HF—H"
and 31 December 2016 —E2—-hE+ZA=+—HE
—E-XE+=ZHA=+—H 500,000 50,000
Domestic shares (Note a) WE R (H5ta) 370,000 37,000
H shares (Note b) H % (M5t b) 130,000 13,000
500,000 50,000
Notes: P 3E
(a) Pursuant to an approval dated 4 June 2003 issued by the China Securities (@ BEFREFEEEREZEGN_TT=F<A

A BfRRIH S - BEITRBR A B AR R
5 Bl % A 7 A R #1.00 7T # 37,000,000
BEBREFALTREERARKOIOTH
370,000,000 i % 38 -

Bz
EEN

RZZZE=F+—A+WA - AR FARE
P8I 3 4R B B #7377 69 130,000,000 B F R A R
010 HR - BIEAEE 5 RECE THIER
& #)117,000,000 EHEL - A RIREAFHHE
REEEOSOBTHAEBRARALTREN
13,000,000 & H fi% (48 & 74 4 A R # 69,550,000
TT) o RN EATIE - AR BRARERFEED B
& 412,150,000 L(H & RO AR %
13,000,0007T ) & 52,850,000 7t (18 & R4 A
R # 56,550,000 7T) °

123
D me BRI B IR A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR M 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-—F—<ET-A=t—AILEE

33. DEFERRED TAXATION

34.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately RMB4,881,000 (2015: RMB26,347,000)
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unused tax losses incurred by the Company and PRC subsidiaries
can be carried forward for a period of five years. Other tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB1,220,000 (2015:
RMB6,587,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i) In January 2015, Shenzhen Bo Tai Yuan Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Plaintiff”) filed a claim through the Shenzhen Futian
District People’s Court against Shenzhen Shi WanHao Wu
Lian Technology Limited (“Shenzhen WanHao”), a subsidiary
of the Company, as the first defendant and against Shenzhen
Yitoa Electronics Technology Co., Ltd. and Jiaxing Ming Ju
Da Electronic Technology Co., Ltd as the second defendants
relating to a dispute over a debt transfer of RMB113,000
among themselves.

Pursuant to the judgement issued by People’s Court of
Shenzhen City Guangdong Province dated 8 April 2015,
Shenzhen WanHao won the case. However, the plaintiff
made an appeal to Intermediate People’s Court of Shenzhen
City Guangdong Province on 6 November 2015.

On 18 April 2016, the Company received the judgement from
the Intermediate People’s Court of Shenzhen City Guangdong
Province. It was held that the Plaintiff's appeal was rejected
and the original judgment was upheld. The Company is not
liable in the litigation. The litigation does not have any impact
on the current and future profit of the Company.
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BHE—T—

RNE+ZRA=+—BItFE

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES — Continued

(i)

On 4 November 2016, a former employee of the Company
commenced proceedings in the Labour Tribunal of Hong
Kong against the Company and its subsidiary, Hong Kong
Wan Li Enterprise Company Limited for claiming a total
amount of approximately HK$2,600,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,340,000) on a number of grounds,
including (i) dismissal by reason of redundancy, (i) failure to
grant statutory holidays, (i) failure to grant annual leave, (iv)
failure to pay long service payment, (v) failure to make
payment for overtime work, (vi) failure to pay end of year
payment, (vii) failure to pay an additional payment. The
Company has vigorously made a defence against the claims.

The first and second mention hearings were held on 2
December 2016 and 1 March 2017 respectively. A
judgement was issued by the Labour Tribunal that the claim
against the subsidiary was discharged, and the third mention
hearing is scheduled to take place on 5 May 2017.

Taking into account the possible outcome and their
obligations for the claim, the Group has made a provision for
claim of approximately RMB86,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$96,000) for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Since the claim is still in progress, the Directors would
continue to exercise their due care in monitoring the progress
of the claim and would assess the adequacy of provision of
claim and the financial impact to the Group as and when
appropriate. The Directors believe that the amount provided
represents the best estimate of the Group’s liability having
taken legal advice.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

34. FREE — &

(i)

R-ZE—XF+—AWNEB » AR
ZRREBRESS é%ﬁfﬁ$
REMBATERSEREEBRA
BEHRZEERERF: %ﬁ%%%@
2,600,000/ TT(HEE R ARE
2,340,0007T) B HEIE () A& B f#
12 - (i)&E BB & - (i) RE
B vREIHERRBES ()-8
EX IR - (vi)EE AT F LB
& VipEBZAREINMIR - A A
ERZREELESRNE

—RRBZRRERADBIRZE
—RNE+-A-BR=-Z—+F=A
—HE1T - BEBHED QMEORE
HENBATIMRE - FZRIRER
MER—_ZT—tFRARALET -

LEBZRENTTEERRET &

EZT—RF+ZA=t+—BLF

B AEBEELREBBEOARE
T (FRE 7 4996,00077T) °

—~

HRZRENEETET  EFHKME
BRERERZREER  YHNE
EREFEZREZBRBRERAN
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BLEANEERMERE R RIEL
HRER GG
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35. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENT
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term
ranging from one to three years. None of the leases included
contingent rentals and terms of renewal were established in the
leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

35.

REHNALE
REBEREBEA

KEHERBEASEREETHAE
¥ERMOES BONBERENT—2
=F o WESNAHERNHELOREHFH
RIS RAFRLYR o

R8s B - R BRI A AT B EE 5
B BT S R TR 403 B 1 B ST 0
PRI -

2016 2015
—~E —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Within one year —F R 36 401
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (RRERWMT) - 62
36 463

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group did not have any significant capital commitment as at
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ The balances with related parties at the end of reporting
period are disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements.

(b)  The key management personnel of the Group comprises all
Directors and Supervisors, details of their emoluments are
disclosed in Note 16. The remuneration of the Directors is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. A AR T
COMPANY

2016 2015
— N —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hax AR®T AREEF T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties "EYHE - 979
Prepaid lease payment EHEERIE - 3,873
Investments in subsidiaries AR A T8 (@) 5,621 5,621
5,621 10,473
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payment AR HEER = 242
Amounts due from subsidiaries F&“H&Bﬁ% TTAIE (b) 3,166 3,164
Bank balances and cash wITHEBR RS 2,510 93
5,676 3,499
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNBERRNIERTEB 1,169 635
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE ] (b) 256 754
Amount due to a former director N —RBTEEFHUA 9,288 9,288
Amount due to a major shareholder B —Z X BB 2,000 -
Amount due to a former shareholder }T‘éﬁ—% ﬁﬁ%%%ﬂlﬁ 31,191 29,658
Dividends payable FEATIR, 4,440 4,440
Provision for claim RIE %?1% 86 -
Other borrowings /H\ﬁﬁ%% 6,220 11,000
54,650 55,775
Net current liabilities REAEEFE (48,974) (52,276)
Net liabilities FEE (43,353) (41,803)
Capital and reserves EXRK#E
Share capital [N 50,000 50,000
Reserves (G @) (93,353) (91,803)
Capital deficiency BERE 4 (43,353) (41,809)
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and RARMMBRARDKEESER _F
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2017 —+E=A-t+NBIEREER I
and are signed on its behalf by: mTHEERERS
He Keng Wu shanhong
{8 RIRAT
Director Director
EF C:
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. KRB BEMRRK — &
COMPANY — Continued

Notes gz
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (@ R B A BRIEE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETIRE R 6,361 6,361
Less: Accumulated impairment B BEHRE (740) (740)
5,621 5,621
(o) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries (o) FEMS () B 88 A R 30E
2016 2015
ZB—XRF —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETFT
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A RIFRIA 3,166 3,164
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A RIFRIE (256) (754)
(© Reserves © &
Statutory
Capital Other surplus Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses Total
EXfHE HivfE ZERHLAES R EE Foh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AEEFT ARBFT AR®FT AEREFT
At 1 January 2015 W-E-RF—A—AH 40,449 241,510 23,701 (401,776) (96,116)
Profit and total comprehensive FRERREERALE
income for the year - - - 4,313 4,313
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—RF+=-A=+—H 40,449 241,510 23,701 (397,463) (91,803)
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNREERABE
income for the year - - - (1,550) (1,550)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H 40,449 241,510 23,701 (399,013 (93,353)
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. FEHBEAT
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-E—RFE_ZE—HF+-_A=1+—
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: A ARRIEEMBEARFBENOT :
Place of
incorporation/
registration Attributable equity
Class of and operation/  Paid up/ interest held
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment issued share capital by the Company Principal activities
EREL/
HRREE/ BHE/
WEAREH FisRoEN Rt BRITRA KAFELRE IEEH
2016 2015
“B-xE 31
Hong Kong Wan Li Ordinary Hong Kong HKD10,000 100% 100%  Trading the electronic component
Enterprise Company Limited (paid up HKD1,000) and electronic subassembly
BEERLRARAA LRR & 100007 100% 100% EEEFTAREFHAH
(&2 1,000%7T)
Yuyao City WanHao Technology - Contriouted capital PRC RMB3,180,000 100% 100%  Original Equipment Manufacturing
Industrial Company Limited
AUTESHRERBRAA  EARA hE AR%3,1800007 100% 100% RiaHERE
Shenzhen Shi WanHao Wu Contributed capital  PRC RMB3,180,000 100% 100% Trading the electronic component and
Lian Technology Limited Original Equipment Manufacturing
glectronic subassembly
MITESZIBHAERAT  BERA i AR%3,180,0007 100% 100% BEEEFLHRRERGREET
-E‘M#
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at RERSKFREMER - HERBARTAE
the end of the year or at any time during the year. EREREENESES -
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40. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 40.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
deregistered Ningbo Yitai Electronic Company Limited, a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC which was inactive.

—EREATMERR

REBEE2-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HIEHPHK
FE AEEREEL —HETRTES
¥NIIE2EMNBRARERIZEZEFERA
7 e

RMB’000

ARETTT

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRRIE « H=d KA M IR 6
Net assets of deregistered subsidiary BEEERMNBARNEETE 6
Non-controlling interests eI (633)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — IR B A RIRUEE B Rl ) M e (627)

The subsidiary deregistered during the year ended 31 December
2015 had no significant impact on the turnover and results of the
Group.

41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 41.

There are no significant events after the reporting period.
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HE-_Z—R"E+_A=+—HILFE
RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2§ "FT-nfF "E-MmF "F-=Ff C"E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT AR®FT AR®TT ARETR
Revenue gy 14,337 56,427 43,787 47,039 9,180
Cost of sales HEMAR (12,648) (54,477) (41,144) (48,307 (14,823)
Gross profit (loss) EFE(BE) 1,689 1,950 2,643 (1,268) (6,643)
Other income Hiphe A 5 512 830 (1,649) 2,778
Impairment of property, nE - BERREE
plant and equipment - - - - (1,225)
Impairment of an amount JEW R B A R FUBR(E
due from former related company - - - - (16)
Reversal of trade payables REETE SRR - 850 - 88,473 -
Waiver of other payables and accruals A Efh e[ BR 20 - [E=H B A
and receipt in advances R - 5,938 158 3,510 -
Selling and distribution expenses HENDIHEER - - ) (464) (584)
Written off of trade receivables e B SRR - - - (2,842) -
Administrative expenses TRER (6,663) (5,353) (10,370) (11,318) (8,450)
Finance costs BARKAK - - (750) 912) (1,365)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HENE - R RRE -
plant and equipment, investment REYE NN
properties and prepaid BEFTEEHN/ (BB)
lease payments 2,343 - - - 8)
Gain (loss) on deregistration/disposal R,/ HEHE LA
of subsidiaries Wiz (1) - 627 (125) - 6,377
Reversal for claims, net ZERE - FE o - _ _ 770
(Loss) profit before taxation BRE (BB %7 (2,626) 4,524 (7,629) 73,530 (7,366)
Income tax credit (expense) FrigfHES (FX) 2 - (21) - -
(Loss) profit for the year E R (B1R) %7 (2,624) 4,524 (7,644) 73,530 (7,366)
Attributable to: JEfE
Owners of the Company ARBEEEA (2,624) 4,524 (7,147) 72,255 (7,322)
Non-controlling interests FEERR R - - (497) 1,275 (44)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)EF (2,624) 4,524 (7,644) 73,530 (7,366)
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BE-T—~FT-A=t—ALEE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE  BERER
At 31 December
Rt=A=t+-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“Z-RE C—ET-nf CZE-mMFE ZET-=F C"T-CFf
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR
Total assets BERE 15,388 16,079 18,696 24,588 29,323
Total liabilities BEEE (66,466) (64,457) (70,944) (69,210) (147,490)
(51,078) (48,378) (62,248) (44,622) (118,167)
Equity attrioutable to owners KRAEBA
of the Company FEfERER (51,078) (48,378) (52,881) (45,753 (118,023)
Non-controlling interests R E R - - 633 1,131 (144)
(51,078) (48,378) (52,248) (44,622) (118,167)
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